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Chairman’s Statement

The Directors of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have the pleasure of presenting to our shareholders the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2003.

Results for the Financial Year Ended
31 March 2003

The Group continued to record another profitable year with
attributable profit amounting to HK$30.2 million, almost in line with
last year's figure (2002: HK$31.2 million).

The consolidated turnover for the year was HK$892.0 million, being
39.1% higher than the turnover reported last year (2002: HK$641.2
million). The Group’s turnover was derived principally from the
businesses of building construction, the supply and installation of
building materials, and interior and renovation works, each accounting
for approximately 80.1%, 10.5%, and 9.1%, respectively of the Group’s
consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 March 2003.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK10.6 cents (2002:
HK11.0 cents).

As at 31 March 2003, the net asset value of the Group was HK$374.4
million, representing an increase of 7.9% over last year.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2003 (2002: Nil) to
shareholders whose names appear on the Registers of Members of
the Company on 31 July 2003. This together with the interim dividend
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Chairman’s Statement

of HK1 cent per share gives a total of HK2.5 cents per share for the
year (2002: Nil). The proposed dividend will be paid on 29 August
2003 following approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Business Review

Over the past few years, we have seen Hong Kong passing from one
crisis to another. While many issues following the aftermath of the
Asian financial crisis remain unresolved, Hong Kong has yet again been
challenged with the outbreak of SARS in March this year. As a result,
the already weak economy and fragile market sentiment have been
further hampered. The building construction industry, like most other
industries in Hong Kong, has been experiencing fierce competition in
the midst of the prevalent economic downturn, prolonged deflation,
persistently weak market sentiment, and decreasing fiscal reserve.

Despite struggling along in such a difficult environment, the Group
has still managed to record a consolidated turnover of HK$892.0
million, and an attributable profit of HK$30.2 million for the year
under review. The turnover from all of its core businesses — building
construction, building materials and interior and renovation businesses
has shown a promising improvement, although gross profit margins
have declined in the face of intense competition.

In addition to strengthening its core businesses, the Group has
commenced the health products business and has, during the year,
pursued other businesses such as property investment, building
management, and property development. Details are highlighted
below:—

. In May 2002, the Group purchased part of the 3rd floor and the
whole 4th floor of Shatin Industrial Centre as its head office,
and for use as rental properties to generate a steady income for
the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

. In September 2002, the Group successfully secured the sole
distributorship for a range of Lingzhi spores products from Zhong
Shan University, and distributorships for various health products.

. In November 2002, the Group acquired a company undertaking
building management services.

. In March 2003, the Group acquired two pieces of land located in
Hong Kong and a 50% interest in two pieces of adjoining land
situated in Dongguan, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
with a total site area of approximately 86,886 square metres for
property development purposes.

. Subsequent to the year-end, the Group has made further
purchase of the 5th floor and will purchase part of the 6th floor
of Shatin Industrial Centre for use as rental properties.

. In June 2003, the Group has also acquired the entire issued share
capital of Retailcorp Limited which carries on a wholesale health
products business and operates a health products retailing chain
store business under the trade name of Health Plus.

We anticipate that such diversification will help to broaden the Group's
earnings base and strengthen its future growth. The Group will
continue to seek suitable business opportunities.

On the financial side, the Group has maintained a healthy cash flow
position. As at 31 March 2003, the total cash and securities investment
balances accounted for approximately 46.6% of the current assets
(2002: 60.2%).
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Chairman’s Statement

Future Directions and Prospects

Looking forward, market conditions in Hong Kong are expected to
remain difficult during the next few years. However, with the gradual
recovery of the United States’ economy after the Iraq war, the low
interest rates, the continued population growth, a more affordable
level of local property prices, and the Hong Kong Government's
housing policy to stabilize property prices, it suggests that there are
more reasons for hope than worry in the medium to long-term
prospects of the building construction industry.

During this uncertain environment, the Group will continue to adopt
a positive and prudent approach to strengthen our core businesses,
to seek opportunities to diversify into other viable businesses and to
upgrade the quality of our works in order to enhance the Group’s
ability to sustain growth and development. With our persistent efforts
in cost control, quality enhancement, and efficiency improvement,
the Group is well prepared for the challenges ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders for
their confidence and continuous support. | would also like to take
this opportunity to express my appreciation to our staff for their great
efforts and persistent contributions to the Group. Time changes, but
their loyalty and dedication have not changed.

%

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June 2003
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Residential Development of Siena Discovery Bay
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Operations Review

Construction Division

EEERENELH

Redevelopment of Kwai Chung Estate Phase 7
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Construction works at Barker Road
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Foundation at Aberdeen

AEMNESHZBRER

Shek Yam Estate Phase 5 development
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Operations Review

Construction Division

Despite the adverse market environment, the Construction Division
has recognised a total turnover of HK$714.6 million during the year
(2002: HK$531.6 million), an increase of 34.4% compared with the
corresponding period last year. However, due to severe competition,
the gross profit margins have dropped, and the Division’s profits for
the year decreased by 27.4% to HK$23.0 million.

The main projects undertaken have included the re-development of
Kwai Chung Estate Phase 7 for the Hong Kong Housing Authority, the
construction works at Barker Road and Discovery Bay, the extension
works for the English Schools Foundation at Aberdeen, and the
residential development at Inland Lot No. 8840 Wah Fu. All these
projects have progressed smoothly, as scheduled. The construction
works for a basement, podium and transfer plate at Tung Chung,
undertaken by a joint-venture with Hip Hing Construction Company
Limited were also carried out satisfactorily. Following completion of
the site formation works for the proposed CLP Power Substation at
Discovery Bay North, the superstructure works have commenced and
are expected to be completed in 2003/04.

During the year, this Division was awarded HK$501.9 million of new
contracts. Major new contracts included Shek Yam Estate Phase 5
development for the Hong Kong Housing Authority, construction of
a school for moderately mentally handicapped children in Yuen Long
for the Architectural Services Department and construction works for
the Discovery Bay North Residents Club.

As at 31 March 2003, the outstanding value of contracts on hand for
this Division amounted to approximately HK$650.8 million.

In recognition of our active effort in protecting the environment, both
subsidiaries of this Division, Hanison Construction Company Limited

13
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Operations Review

("HCCL") and Hanison Contractors Limited (“HCL"), were awarded the
1SO14001:1996 Environmental Management System certificates in June
2002.

In February 2003, HCCL was admitted onto the approved contractors
list under Group B (Probation) in the Site Formation Category by the
Works Bureau.

Site safety control has always been one of the Division's primary goals.
With the concerted efforts of our strengthened safety team and site
management, the accident rate of the Division for the year dropped
from 27.4 to 17.6 per 1,000 workers, which was below the accident
rate of the Hong Kong construction industry for the same year as
announced by the Occupational Safety and Health Council. In October
2002, HCCL was presented the Hong Kong Construction Association
Safety Achievement Award. During the year, HCCL has also won two
merit awards in the re-development of Kwai Chung Estate Phase 7
under the categories of “Building Sites (Public Contract)” and “Safety
Team” in the “Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme 2002/2003"
organised by the Labour Department and the industry. The
Construction Division shall continue to pay particular attention to the
safety control issue.

During the past few months, our Group has been preparing for the
implementation of the 5-S Management System within the office and
the construction sites. We believe that through the introduction of
this system, we shall have more pleasant and efficient working
conditions, and better environmental protection and conservation.

Subsequent to the year-end, this Division had commenced the
construction works for the residential development of the Group’s
property located at lot 2574 in D.D. 92, Castle Peak Road, Kwu Tung,
Sheung Shui, N.T. This construction project is scheduled to be
completed in 2004.
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Operations Review

Going forward, it is anticipated that the building construction business
will remain difficult for the next few years, given the sluggish property
market, weak consumer confidence and the diminishing number of
building construction works. However, the management is optimistic
regarding the medium to long-term prospects of the property market
and the building construction business.

With the positioning and direction of the Hong Kong Government's
housing policies clarified, a nine-point package of focused measures
was announced in November 2002 to redress the current imbalance
between supply and demand in the property market, and to restore
public confidence. The Government’s development plan included a
comprehensive urban renewal programme, the development of West
Kowloon for the integrated art, cultural and entertainment district,
and turning the former Kai Tak Airport site into residential
developments and major sports and recreational facilities. It suggested
that considerable prospective project works would be derived therefrom.

The Hong Kong Government's determinant policies to stabilize
property prices, the low mortgage interest rates, an affordable level
of property prices, the increase in population in Hong Kong, and the
gradual recovery of the United States’ economy after the Iraq war,
are all positive factors supporting the property and building
construction market in the medium to long-term.

During the past few years, HCCL and HCL have registered with the
Buildings Department, the Works Bureau and the Hong Kong Housing
Authority as approved contractors for construction and construction-
related works. With reputation gained over the 10 years' experience
in the building construction business, this Division is well positioned
in the building construction market for both the private and public
sectors. To maintain the Group's competitiveness, the management
will continue to implement tight controls over costs and safety, and
to enhance quality and efficiency. We have taken every positive
measure. What we need now is the revitalization of Hong Kong'’s
economy and the restoration of consumer confidence.

15
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Operations Review

Building Materials Division

The Building Materials Division has recorded double-digit growth, with
total turnover increasing by 11.9% to HK$127.8 million (turnover to
external parties was HK$80.8 million), from last year’s turnover amount
of HK$114.2 million. However, contributions from this Division
recorded a 39.6% drop as compared with last year, reflecting the
impact of the increasingly competitive market condition during the
year under review.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon")

Trigon is one of the subsidiaries of the Building Materials Division,
which specializes in the supply and installation of interior products
such as Polyboard, timber flooring, suspended ceiling systems and
kitchen cabinets.

Trigon entered its sixth year in the building material business with
great strength and confidence. It recorded an increase of 16.1% in
turnover for the year. The turnover has mainly been derived from the
supply and installation of kitchen cabinets, Polyboard, timber flooring,
and suspended ceiling systems to renowned developers and main
contractors such as the Cheung Kong group, Sun Hung Kai group,
Swire group, Henderson group, Sino group and the Kowloon-Canton
Railway Corporation.

New contracts awarded during the year have included the supply and/
or installation of: Polyboard for Ocean Shores Phase Ill, Banyan Garden,
Caribbean Coast Phase 2 and Victoria Tower; kitchen cabinets for Tsing
Yi Rambler Crest, Princeton Tower, Caribbean Coast Phase 2, Sky Tower
and Shek Kong Residential Development; fire rated enclosure for
International Financial Centre; false ceiling for Ocean View at Ma On
Shan, Kowloon Tong MTR Station Renovation; as well as wood
floorings for Sky Horizon, Cloud View Road.
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Operations Review

As at 31 March 2003, the outstanding values of contracts on hand
amounted to HK$125.3 million, including contracts for the supply and/
or installation of kitchen cabinets, timber flooring, and suspended
ceiling systems amounting to HK$70.2 million, HK$1.7 million, and
HK$31.5 million, respectively, as well as orders for the supply of
Polyboard amounting to HK$3.1 million.

During the year, we have focused on the sourcing of other new
products from worldwide recognized suppliers, as we expect that the
growth of existing products will gradually reach a mature stage. We
hope that more new products can be launched in the near future, to
enable Trigon to maintain steady growth in the market.

Trigon continues to expand its client base for its existing products in
both the private and public sectors. Apart from securing the sole
distributorship of Polyboard, an environmentally friendly water-proof
product as sub-flooring for buildings, Trigon has also secured the
distributorship for Firex Board which is also an environmentally
friendly product. It provides a fire resistant function, and is useful for
all purposes, in particular, for ceilings and enclosures.

Looking ahead, where there is little hope of a rapid recovery of market
sentiment, or a quick solution to the economic issues in Hong Kong,
our strategy continues to be cost restraining and quality improving,
and our attention will focus on expanding our client bases and
sourcing new products. Although the building materials market is
expected to remain competitive, with our proven quality products and
services, strong financial resources and good customer relationships,
there is every confidence that Trigon will continue to deliver exciting
outcomes for the Group.
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Operations Review

Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee")
(formerly known as Ng Tai Kee Company Limited)

Tai Kee, another subsidiary of the Building Materials Division,
specializes in the supply of pipes and fittings. Apart from its retail
business, Tai Kee has also supplied its piping products to contractors.

During this difficult time, we have doubled our efforts, only to achieve
89.6% of last year's turnover level. The turnover for the year has been
mainly derived from the retail sales of piping products, as project sales
have only just commenced.

New project contracts awarded during the year have included the
supply of pipes to Alexandra House, CLP Station, Science Park Building
V and Suen Tat Metal Machine Factory Limited. As at 31 March 2003,
the outstanding values of contracts on hand amounted to HK$1.9
million.

Besides the continued efforts to expand our existing client base and
pursue the business of supplying pipes, fittings and other related
accessories to contractors for construction projects and building
maintenance works, more emphasis has been placed on widening our
product range and on sourcing the distributorship for new products.
During the year, Tai Kee has successfully secured a distributorship for
epoxy coated Cast Iron Pipes. Plans are under way to add new
innovative products to enhance our penetration into the pipes market.

Following the recent SARS outbreak, the Government has been urged
to enact laws forcing building owners to regularly carry out repairs
and maintenance works on drainage systems to prevent diseases. We
anticipate that this will help push up the demand for pipes.

Looking forward, with many unresolved economic problems and
negative sentiment lingering around, it seems that we might have to
wait longer for the recovery of the Hong Kong economy. During this
difficult time, we will make every effort, coupled with tight control
over our costs, to continue capturing market share, and to maintain
our reputation in the pipes supply market. We trust a breakthrough
will occur following our persistent efforts.
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Operations Review

Interior and Renovation Division

The Interior and Renovation Division has recorded a turnover to
external parties of HK$93.3 million, representing a 101.2% increase
over last year's figure. However, following a drop in the gross profit
margins to adapt to the market condition, the profits for this Division
declined by 28.4% to HK$2.0 million.

This Division offers a wide range of interior, maintenance and
renovation services including office fitting-out, external wall
renovation, refurbishment, interior fitting-out, alteration and addition
works in both the public and private sectors.

For the year under review, major project works have included the
external wall renovation of Wylie Court, and renovation of the CDW
Building (including external wall and shopping arcade). The Wylie
Court project has been progressing smoothly and is expected to be
completed according to schedule and to the client’s satisfaction. To
increase our productivity and to ensure a safe working environment,
we have employed a new hoisted working platform for the CDW
Building project. This project is still in progress and will be completed
in 2003.

Other major contract works awarded during the year have included
the alteration and addition works for The University of Hong Kong,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Ladies’ Recreation Club, CC Wu Building and the English
Schools Foundation; and fitting-out works for the Tung Chung Coastal
Skyline Sales Office, the CDW Building, Shun Tak Centre, 8 Hart Avenue
and various social community centres.
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Operations Review

As at 31 March 2003, the outstanding values of contracts on hand
amounted to HK$121.9 million.

To improve our competitiveness, we have adopted an effective
management system in planning, monitoring and controlling
throughout the whole working process. It has helped the Division to
ensure that all projects are completed according to schedule and no
charges are suffered for liquidated damages.

We have also continued to look for efficient and cost effective working
methods in order to enhance our productivity, quality and standard
of work. For instance, we have used the hoisted working platform for
our external wall renovation projects. This working platform helps to
reduce disturbance and avoids poor ventilation during renovation, as
it does not require scaffolding to enclose the whole building. Many
consultants have expressed interest in using this method.

On work safety and environmental protection issues, the proven
records of a low accident rate and no infringement of environmental
law and regulation have demonstrated our efforts in safety control
and environmental protection.

To maintain a good relationship with our clients and consultants, we
will continue to provide quality services to meet their unique needs
and requirements.
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Operations Review

During the year, we have been successfully included in the contractors’
lists of Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation, The Hong Kong
Academy for Performing Arts and The Hong Kong Jockey Club, and
some property management companies. In May and June 2003, this
Division was also admitted onto the approved contractors lists under
Group M2 (Probationary) in the Building (Maintenance) Category and
Group SCI (Probationary) in the Building (Shopping Centre
Improvements) Category respectively by the Hong Kong Housing
Authority. These will avail ourselves of opportunities to tender for
more project works.

Going forward, it is unlikely that there will be a rapid recovery of the
present gloomy economy, or an easing of the severe competitive
situation in the near future. However, according to the 2003 Policy of
the Housing, Planning & Lands Bureau, building safety and
maintenance remains one of their major tasks. Also, the Hong Kong
Government is keen to encourage property owners to provide regular
maintenance of their buildings and to strengthen statutory
requirements on building safety. These messages are inspiring and
are holding out the hope that there will be a significant demand for
maintenance and renovation works. The Division will therefore remain
optimistic about the medium to long-term prospects of the industry
while staying flexible and competitive within the existing challenging
environment.
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Operations Review

Health Products Division

During the year, the Group has set up a Health Products Division to
pursue the health products business. The Division has successfully
secured the sole distributorship for “LingZhi Master”, a range of
Lingzhi spores products from Zhong Shan University, as well as
distributorships for various health products.

In December 2002, the “Care & Health Club” was opened in Tsimshatsui
where our members obtained the latest health information, and joined
the seminars and activities of the Club. The Division is also preparing
for the launch of other dietary supplements and diagnostic kits, and
is expanding its distribution network in both Hong Kong and overseas.

Subsequent to the year-end, the Group has also acquired the entire
issued share capital of Retailcorp Limited, which carries on a wholesale
health products business and operates a health products retailing chain
store business under the trade name of Health Plus.

With the increasing health consciousness of the general public,
particularly after the outbreak of SARS, it is expected that this business
will provide growth prospects for the Group.
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AEEBFURDAIRPLOZRENE

The Group's investment properties at Shatin
Industrial Centre

Property Investment Division

The occupancy rate of the property at No. 95 Bedford Road, Tai Kok
Tsui, Kowloon was 50% as at 31 March 2003 compared to 25% of
previous year.

In May 2002, the Group purchased part of the 3rd floor and the whole
4th floor of Shatin Industrial Centre partly for use as its head office
and partly for use as rental properties. After the removal of its head
office in August 2002 from Tsuen Wan to Shatin Industrial Centre, the
property at Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, which was previsously used
as part of the head office of the Group, was subsequently leased out.

The rental properties at Shatin and Mei Wan Street were 100% leased
as at 31 March 2003. Subsequent to the year-end, the Group has further
purchased the 5th floor and will purchase part of the 6th floor of
Shatin Industrial Centre for use as rental properties.

We believe that these rental properties will generate a steady income
stream for the Group.
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Operations Review

Property Development Division

In the first quarter of 2003, the Group acquired two pieces of land
located in Hong Kong, and a 50% interest in two pieces of adjoining
land situated in Dongguan, PRC, with a total site area of approximately
86,886 square metres for property development purposes. With
positive factors such as the low interest rates, the continued population
growth, an affordable level of local property prices, the Hong Kong
Government’s housing policy to stabilize property prices, together with
the fact that the management team possesses the expertise and
knowledge in property development, the Group believes the
development of these properties will enhance the Group’s profitability
and increase shareholders’ funds.

Subsequent to the year-end, this Division had commenced the
residential development of the land located at lot 2574 in D.D. 92,
Castle Peak Road, Kwu Tung, Sheung Shui, N.T. This development
project is scheduled to be completed in 2004.

Properties Agency and Management Division

In November 2002, the Group acquired a company undertaking
building management business and began its services for the CDW
Building in Tsuen Wan. The Division also provides agency and leasing
services for the CDW Building and 8 Hart Avenue in Tsimshatsui.
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Financial Review

Summary of Results

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2003 was HK$892.0
million, an increase of HK$250.8 million or 39.1% against HK$641.2
million recorded in 2001/02. The Group reported a profit attributable
to shareholders of HK$30.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2003,
as compared to HK$31.2 million achieved in 2001/02. Basic earnings
per share for the year was HK10.6 cents (2002: HK11.0 cents).

Group Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed.

The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash balance, and
endeavours to maintain its strong cash-flow generating capability, its
ability to undertake investments and acquisition projects, in order to
enhance the shareholders’ value. The total cash and securities
investment balances of the Group decreased by HK$200.6 million
during the year, to HK$161.4 million at 31 March 2003 (2002: HK$362.0
million) and accounted for 46.6% of the current assets (2002: 60.2%).
The decrease was mainly due to the utilisation of funds, during the
year, to purchase properties from HKR International Limited (“HKRI"),
a substantial shareholder of the Company. These details have been
disclosed in the section “Major Acquisitions”.

As a result of the utilisation of cash for the purchase of properties,
the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) has
reduced to 1.2 (2002: 1.6) and the current assets have decreased to
HK$345.9 million from HK$601.4 million of last year.
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Financial Review

Nevertheless, the Group has still been able to maintain a healthy
balance sheet with no bank borrowings and is practically debt-free,
other than amounts due under normal trade payables as at 31 March
2003. Therefore, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated
on the basis of the Group's total bank borrowings over shareholders’
funds, has remained zero. The Group has continued to finance its
operation and investing activities from its internally generated funds.

For day to day liquidity management, and to maintain flexibility in
funding, the Group has access to banking facilities with an aggregate
amount of HK$165.8 million, of which approximately HK$64.4 million
has been utilised mainly for the issuance of letters of credit and
performance bonds as at 31 March 2003. These banking facilities bore
interest at prevailing market interest rates and were unsecured.

With continuous cash inflow from operations, together with cash and
marketable investments on hand, as well as available banking facilities,
the group’s liquidity position will remain healthy, with sufficient
financial resources to meet its commitments and future operation
requirements.

Treasury Policies

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds with maximum
utility, to achieve better risk control and to minimise cost of funds,
the Group's treasury activities are centralised and scrutinised by the
top management.

The objective of the Group's treasury policies is to minimise its exposure
to fluctuations in the exchange rate. Treasury transactions unrelated
to underlying financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase of goods. The
Group will determine if any hedging is required, on an individual basis,
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Financial Review

depending upon the size and nature of the exposure, and the
prevailing market conditions. It is the policy of the Group not to enter
into transactions for speculative purposes.

The surplus cash is generally placed in short-term bank deposits with
reputable financial institutions, or invested in securities instruments.
Most of these are denominated in United States dollars, with certain
cash balances, which are held temporarily, in Hong Kong dollars, for
the payment of operating expenses within a short period of time. As
at the close of business on 31 March 2003, the Group maintained
securities investments of approximately HK$40.5 million. About 99.8%
of them are held in United States dollar, comprising mainly the
investments in fixed income securities with an average annualised
interest rate of approximately 7.5% per annum.

Nearly all revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated either in Hong Kong or United States dollars. As the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group
therefore will not have any significant exposure to gains or losses
arising from the movement of the United States’ currency exchange
rate against the Hong Kong dollar.

Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2003, shareholders’ funds of the Group totalled
HK$374.4 million, an increase of HK$27.4 million from HK$347.0
million at 31 March 2002. On that basis, the consolidated net asset
value of the Group at the year-end date was HK$1.32 per share,
compared to the consolidated net asset value of HK$1.22 per share at
31 March 2002. Increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable
to profit retained after interim dividends were paid for the year.
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Financial Review

Major Acquisitions

During the year, the Group purchased, from internally generated
funds, part of the 3rd floor and the whole 4th floor of Shatin Industrial
Centre from an independent third party at a consideration of
approximately HK$28.4 million. This property is partly for the Group’s
own use and partly for investment purposes.

In March 2003, the Group acquired two pieces of land located in Hong
Kong, and a 50% interest in two pieces of adjoining land situated in
Dongguan, PRC, with a total site area of approximately 86,886 square
metres for property development purposes, for a total cash
consideration of HK$180.0 million. The details of these acquisitions
have been disclosed in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated
14 March 2003.

Capital Structure

It is the intention of the Group to maintain an appropriate mix of
equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over time. As
noted above, the Group had no debt as at the year-end date.

Collateral

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had no mortgage or charges on its
assets.
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Financial Review

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had outstanding commitments in
respect of the purchase of the 5th floor and part of the 6th floor of
Shatin Industrial Centre, and a piece of land at Ping Che, both of which
are located in Hong Kong, from independent third parties at a total
consideration of approximately HK$36.5 million, where deposits
amounting to approximately HK$6.0 million have been paid. These
transactions are expected to be completed before the third quarter
of the year 2003.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 31 of the
consolidated financial statements.

Post Balance Sheet Events

In May 2003, the Group has completed the acquisition of the 5th floor
of Shatin Industrial Centre, Shatin and a piece of land at Ping Che, as
mentioned under the above section “Capital Commitments” at a total
consideration of approximately HK$28.5 million from internally
generated funds. The property at Shatin is held for investment
purposes and the land at Ping Che is held for the Group’s own use.

In June 2003, the Group has also acquired from an independent third
party the entire issued share capital of Retailcorp Limited which carries
on a wholesale health products business and operates a health
products retailing chain store business under the trade name of
“Health Plus” at a consideration to be determined.
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Financial Review

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group, excluding its associated company and a jointly controlled
entity, has over 380 employees. In addition to salary payments, other
benefits include discretionary bonuses, provident fund schemes, a
medical insurance scheme, on-the-job training, education sponsorship
subsidies, a group life and personal accident insurance scheme.

Employees are remunerated according to individual performance, the
nature of the job and market trends. The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their competencies, merits and development
potential, and ensures that their remuneration packages are at a
reasonable market level.

All directors, full time employees and consultants of the Group are
entitled to participate in the share option scheme of the Company.
The principal terms of the share option scheme are summarised in the
Report of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2003.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2003 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 59 of the annual report.

An interim dividend amounting to HK$2,837,000 was declared and
paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2003 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 31 July 2003,
amounting to HK$4,255,000. The proposed dividend will be paid on
29 August 2003 following approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

Properties Held for Investment Purpose

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Properties Held for Development

Details of the movements during the year in properties held for
development for the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Share Option Scheme

The Company's existing share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and became effective on 9 January 2002.
Particulars of the Scheme as required under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) are set out below:

Summary of the Scheme
(a) Purpose of the Scheme

To provide the participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company (“Shares"”) with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interest in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Participants of the Scheme

All directors of the Company (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries, and/or its associated companies are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Maximum number of shares available for issuance

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time, a total of 28,367,108
Shares is available for issue under the Scheme which represents
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the Annual Report (i.e. 18 June 2003).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

(@) The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.
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HHEEREH Report of the Directors
BRESTE @) Share Option Scheme (continued)
(d) &2HECZERERRE LR @) (d) Maximum entitlement of each participant (continued)
(b) MEARAAZEFERRIELHE (b) Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
BTESHHEEZHEA (BR or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
REWBRBE1.01 ) REER or any of their respective associates (as defined in rule 1.01
B SEYREEREBH (BE of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange), would result
ZA) LM+ ={EA BE@ZA in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
TERERERL 2 - ERE options already granted and to be granted to such person
BIfEmETRIRT2RN: in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:
() EHUECRTRHEIZE (i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares
B0 R in issue; and
(i) REBREBELEER (D (i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
BREXABRENE LA S of the Shares on date of grant in excess of HK$5
MR pz B hETE) million,
REZEBREENSAN AR such grant of option shall be subject to prior approval of
R(UFADNAZBEAL (ER the shareholders of the Company who are not connected
REMKA)) BxHME - persons of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules of

the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(e) Period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

Within ten years from the date on which option is granted or
such shorter period as the Board of Directors or the relevant
committee thereof may specify.

(f)  Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of Directors or the
relevant committee thereof must specify the minimum period(s)
and/or achievement of performance targets, if any, for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the minimum periods
of time held and/or achievement of performance targets, if any,
specified in the terms of grant at the time of grants.

(g) Amount payable upon acceptance of the option and
the period within which the payment must be made

HK$1.00 shall be paid within 14 days from the offer date of the
option.
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HARGHREH Report of the Directors

BRESTE @) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(h) EEBERETEEZEE (h) Basis of determining exercise price of the option
EREZTHREXBETERTI=EZ The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the higher
BaE: of:

() BXFRARLHABZELEZSAR (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
EBRTtzRDBHE ZBSE quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
REZXA) of grant, which must be a business day;

(i) BXARBERLAHATER (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
REEEABE v BHRERM daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
Mz RMFHRHE R the five Stock Exchange business days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and

(i) ROAREBHZHEE - (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(i) ZETEIZBHRTFR (i) Remaining life of the Scheme
BRIFRIEZET BRI T UL L BEIZ The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 3 January
FECENERATE  #BR=F—= 2012 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms
E—HBZHE® - of the Scheme.

AN B A2 AT B R A0 AR B R I B AR 1 No option was granted by the Company since the adoption of the
B Scheme.
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e E Report of the Directors
p

=5 Directors

ARRREEERBEAREAHCEEN The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

BT : this report were:

FRERIFHITES: Chairman and non-executive director:

ERE Cha Mou Sing, Payson

HITES ! Executive directors:

TE (EFLLHE) Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)

Bitx (HL%) Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

MARE Shen Tai Hing

WEF Lam Chat Yu

FHITES Non-executive directors:

EME Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Bigsh Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors:

B fm Sun Tai Lun

BRE1E Chan Pak Joe

BRBADARZARASERMAE1161R In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
T ERBREERER ﬁﬁ%i/ﬁﬁ"ﬂﬂkﬁﬁﬁ Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson shall retire
ZBRRBEFASLRBEEE  HFGER. from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
FAEEER - Fﬁﬁﬁ?—l—ég%?mﬁ ° and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All other

remaining directors continue in office.
EBIUFHTES2MAS  BARRAZARMA The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the

BERAAURT  AEBRESEAL - period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

41



42

B gsERkeasRAA

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

R E
EE=0¢ )

REEBTZRREFAS LRBERET
ZEE  BERRRFFHEMHE QDT
VYATR-—FRERAREZERT CEER
BRI BARERIEZRBEEH o

EENSAREEERBE

23X

ERBEE ~TH  FREEERFHT
ES - HR-NANNAFMAKXER > £MF
BRADBRE=T5ER - RIATBEX
EREEARLE ((HERR]) 28 £
TREZSEEBREIABRRAARAZE
2 RATBEARBAHBER2EZES
I

IBEE I+tm ARAESEL
B R—ANANEMAREE - MAKEE
Al REBERABBLTARZES  RR=F
ZE-F+-_ABAE—EARXERCE
E-REBEREHERZERLEE K5
ZEENTRRAVYAENEELEAREE
Carnegie-Mellon University + K T2RH1E
TE8{y -

2002/2003 4F 4}t
ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

Report of the Directors

Directors (continued)

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 60, is the chairman and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group in 1989 and
has over 30 years of experience in property development. He is also
the deputy chairman of HKR International Limited (“HKRI") and a
director of a number of public and private companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. He is a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 57, is the managing director of
the Company and joined the Group in 1989. Before he joined the
Group, he was a director for several listed companies and was also a
director of HKRI until his resignation in December 2001. He has
extensive experience in the construction and real estate fields. He holds
a bachelor degree in science from San Diego State University and a
master degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-Mellon
University in the United States of America.
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Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in November 2001. He has over 25 years of investment
management experience in Silicon Valley and Asia. Mr. Cha is currently
the Managing Director of The Mingly Corporation and is also a director
of China International Capital Corporation, HKRI and Shanghai
Commercial Bank, Ltd. He is active in many non-profit organisations,
including the Qiu Shi Foundation, Croucher Foundation and Moral
Education Concern Group. In addition, Mr. Cha is a member of the Council
of Advisors on Innovation and Technology to the Government of Hong
Kong SAR. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson.

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, aged 29, is a non-executive Director
and joined the Group in November 2001. He obtained his experience
in hotel and commercial real estate development as a business
development executive with Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group from 1995
to 1999. He holds a bachelors degree in international politics and
economics from Middlebury College and a masters degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business in the
United States of America. Mr. Cha is a nephew of Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 51, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director in November 2001. He has been an executive
director of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited for over 25 years. Mr.
Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary"” of Tsinghua University in
the PRC. His community service includes having served YMCA as a
director. Prior to his current service to the Housing Society as member
of the Remuneration Committee, he had also served the Audit
Committee.
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Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 51, is an executive Director. He joined the
Group in November 2001 and has more than 20 years of investment
experience in the technology sector, including 15 years in Silicon Valley,
California, the United States of America and eight years in Asia. Dr.
Lam earned his doctorate in management from The Sloan School,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.
Lam was a vice president at C.M. Capital Corporation in the United
States of America, where he specialised in software venture companies
and listed technology companies in the United States of America.

Mr. Shen Tai Hing, aged 61 was appointed an executive Director in
November 2001. He has been a director of HKRI since 1994 until his
resignation in December 2001. Mr. Shen has been a director of Hanison
Construction Company Limited since 1992. Mr. Shen obtained his
master degree from the University of Pittsburgh in the United States
of America. He has been a member of the Textiles Advisory Board of
Hong Kong since 1998.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 52, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director in November 2001. He is the chairman and
managing director of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and has 25
years of experience in the photographic products industry. Dr. Sun
holds a bachelor degree in pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma,
the United States of America, and a doctorate degree of philosophy
in business administration from Southern California University for
Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is the vice patron
of the Community Chest of Hong Kong since 1999, a trustee of The
Better Hong Kong Foundation, and a council member of the Lingnan
University. Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999,
and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.
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Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 51, is an executive Director and the general
manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the Group in 1989 and has over
28 years of experience in public and private sectors of the building
and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a master
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University in Macau, a master degree in construction management
from University of New South Wales in Australia and a bachelor degree
in civil engineering from National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan.
Mr. Tai is a fellow of The Australian Institute of Building (FAIB) and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(MHKICM).

Senior Management

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 34, is a senior manager in the
construction division of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 1998.
He specialises in property development, investment, project
management and marketing in Hong Kong and China. He holds a
bachelor degree in land management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Chow is a Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice) under the Surveyor Registration Board (RPS). He is also a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (AHKIS).

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 52, is the senior construction manager of
the planning and quantity surveying department in the construction
division of the Group and has been with the Group since 1989. He has
over 25 years of experience in planning, estimating, tendering and
quantity surveying in the public and private sectors of the building
and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. Mr. Chuk holds a
bachelor degree in civil engineering and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, Tom, aged 38, is the chief quantity surveyor of the
Group. Mr. Ho joined the Group in 1998 and has 16 years of experience
in quantity surveying consultancy and construction contracting. He
holds a professional diploma in quantity surveying from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Registered Professional Surveyor
(QS) under Surveyor Registration Board (RPS) and a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (AHKIS).

Mr. Hon Sik Man, Danny, aged 43, is a senior manager in the building
materials division of the Group. Mr. Hon has many years of sales and
marketing experience in the field of building materials. He joined the
Group in 1997 and is responsible for the marketing and sourcing of
building materials and the building materials division’s training
program.

Mr. Leung Wing Hong, Clarence, aged 51, is a senior manager of
the Group. Mr. Leung is responsible for the development of
environmental products and facilities management. He joined the
Group in 1999 and has over 20 years of experience in construction
logistic and property management service. Mr. Leung holds a bachelor
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Housing
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administration.

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 52, is the company secretary and
the financial controller of the Group. Mr. Lo joined the Group in 1996
and has 26 years of finance and accounting experience in various
industries. He holds a bachelor of business degree in accounting and
a master degree in business administration from Edith Cowan
University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of the Australian Society
of CPAs (CPA (Aust)), an associate member of the Institute of Financial
Accountants (AFA), and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (FHKSA) and Association of International Accountants
(FAIA).
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Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 44, joined the Group in 1990 and is a senior
project manager of the contract administration department in the
construction division of the Group. Mr. Lun has 20 years of experience
in the construction field. He holds an associateship and a higher
diploma in the building technology and management from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of The Chartered Institute
of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(MHKICM), and Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), and
a safety officer registered with the Labour Department.

Mr. Wong Hon Wai, Albert, aged 43, is a senior manager in the
interior and renovation division of the Group. He had gained 23 years
of experience in the interior and renovation business prior to joining
the Group in 2000. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
from University of Western Sydney, an associateship in Building
Technology and Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and post graduate certificate in Business Administration in
Hong Kong Open University. He is a member of the International
Facility Management Association (IFMA), the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction Managers (MHKICM), The Chartered Management
Institute (MCMI) and The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 43, is a senior project manager of the
contract administration department in the construction division of
the Group. He joined the Group in 1989 and has 20 years of experience
in the public and private sectors of the building and civil engineering
industries in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma in management studies,
a post- experience certificate in building studies and a higher
certificate in structural engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.
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Report of the Directors

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

Other than the share option scheme as described above, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 March 2003 and there has been no issue or exercise of
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.

EECESER Directors’ Interests in Securities
R-ZE=F=ZA=1+-H REEF RE As at 31 March 2003, the interests of the directors in the securities of
) RBI (TR IRA]) E29R 2 RER the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
FREZBCMAFMSZEBALRARES Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the
REAQNEzEH5EE  IBRELTATES “SDI Ordinance”) or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
ETRFRZ2BESTR (BEFE]) BH Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
EARRNAIRBR A2 EENOT by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
R 2w Interests in the Shares
B in & B
Number of Shares

BAES REES LFES Hftig 2 BRipHas

Personal Family Corporate Other Total no.
HE Name interests interests interests interests of Shares

Cha Mou Sing, Payson 294,107 — 328,075 (a) 70,799,632 (b) 71,421,814

Cha Mou Daid, Johnson — — —
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin — — — 70,799,632 (b) 70,799,632
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart 65,854 — 50,010 (a) — 115,864
Tai Sai Ho 1,200 — — — 1,200
Shen Tai Hing 5,250 — — — 5,250

71,772,756 (b) 71,772,756
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(@) The shares are held by a corporation in which the relevant
director is deemed to be interested under the SDI Ordinance.

(b) Following the commencement of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) on 1 April
2003, the Company has received notifications from Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung,
Benjamin that they are beneficiaries of the respective
discretionary trusts holding such shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company or their
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests in
the securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance) as recorded in the register
as at 31 March 2003 kept by the Company under Section 29 of the SDI
Ordinance or which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors, or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to
compete either directly or indirectly, with business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2003, in addition to those interests as disclosed above
in respect of the directors, the Company had been notified of the
following interests, being 10% or more in the issued share capital of
the Company directly or indirectly according to the register of
substantial shareholders required to be maintained under section 16(1)
of the SDI Ordinance:

BiikkE
B8 B Approximate
Number percentage

4 Name of Shares  of holding
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited (f72£1) Great Wisdom Holdings Limited (Note 1) 138,998,833 49.0%
BB (BaE1) HKRI (Note 1) 138,999,013 49.0%
LBJ Regents Limited (Af&£2) LBJ Regents Limited (Note 2) 211,670,286 74.6%
et - Notes:

(1) Great Wisdom Holdings Limited J3 #%
ERZ2EMBLR  Hit  RERE#ER
Bl BERBRHIR BN Great Wisdom
Holdings Limitedffr %2 138,998,833 R I
DhEERER -

(2 ZERONEZOEHEEERMEEZ
138,999,013 RIkf - RZEZ=F=A=
+—HLBJ Regents Limited 3 E2 2 A+
B 2EXERRDZEEA  MRER
BRZEH 0 LB Regents Limited 125
REEER AT 2138,999,013 RR (A
HEEL © LB) Regents Limited JJE TR
HE2EETIZETA  ZEEE22E
THEARERFR(EERTOKE

BREMFRAIREE S » RARERHE B
EE=E=ZA=t+-HERAERLTEE
TRABDSZTHU Lz EE o

(1) Great Wisdom Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI
and therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the 138,998,833 shares
held by Great Wisdom Holdings Limited in accordance with the SDI
Ordinance.

(2)  These share interests include 138,999,013 shares held by HKRI. As at 31
March 2003, LBJ Regents Limited is the holder of 50.23% of shares in
HKRI and pursuant to the SDI Ordinance, LBJ Regents Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 138,999,013 shares held by HKRI. LBJ Regents
Limited is the trustee of certain irrevocable discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family (as defined hereunder) are among the
discretionary objects.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests representing 10% or more of the Company's issued
share capital as at 31 March 2003.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in Contracts and Connected
Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions and
agreements with HKRI and the Cha Family (comprising for this purpose
Mr. Cha Chi Ming, the founder and the chairman of HKRI, Ms. Wong
May Lung, Madeline (being a daughter of Mr. Cha Chi Ming), Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson (being the chairman of the Company), Mr. Cha Mou
Zing, Victor, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson (being the sons of Mr. Cha
Chi Ming) and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin together with their
respective associates, excluding, as the case may be, HKRI), both of
which are substantial shareholders of the Company, and their
respective associates as defined in the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange as follows:

Construction transactions:

The transactions were entered between the Group and HKRI and its
associates in relation to the construction of various buildings and
structures in Hong Kong. The total construction income recognised
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2003 amounted to
HK$516,490,000.

Renovation transactions:

(@) The Group has entered into agreements with HKRI and its
associates for the renovation, maintenance and modification of
certain of its developments. The total interior and renovation
income recognised in respect of the above on-going contracts
during the year ended 31 March 2003 amounted to
HK$3,435,000.

(b) The Group has also entered into two agreements with an
associate of the Cha Family, CDW Building Limited. Of the two
agreements, one was entered into on 17 February 2001
concerning the renovation work of a general nature for CDW
Building owned by CDW Building Limited for a term of one year
commencing from the date of the agreement and renewable
automatically upon expiry thereon, whereas the other one was
entered into on 28 December 2001 relating to an agreed scope
of renovation, alteration and addition works in respect of the
entire aforesaid property. The total renovation income
recognised under the aforesaid agreements during the year
ended 31 March 2003 amounted to HK$46,322,000.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in Contracts and Connected
Transactions (continued)

Properties agency and management transactions:

The Group has also entered into a sole marketing and leasing agreement
and a management agreement with an associate of the Cha Family, CDW
Building Limited on 28 November 2002, pursuant to which the Group
was appointed as the sole marketing and leasing agent and the manager
of the CDW Building located in Hong Kong and owned by CDW Building
Limited for a term of one year commencing from the date of the
agreements and renewable automatically upon expiry thereof unless and
until otherwise terminated.

The sole marketing and leasing agency fees and the manager’s fees
received by the Group from CDW Building Limited during the year
ended 31 March 2003 amounted to HK$362,000.

As the above transactions will be conducted on an ongoing basis, it is
considered that strict compliance with the relevant requirements
relating to such connected transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules (“Requirements”) would be impractical. On application by the
Company, the Company has been granted conditional waivers from
strict compliance with the Requirements in respect of the aforesaid
transactions (“Connected Transactions”).

The directors, including the independent non-executive directors of
the Company, have reviewed the Connected Transactions described
above, including obtaining a letter from the Company’s auditors in
respect of the factual findings on the Connected Transactions and
confirmed that:

(a) The Connected Transactions were:

(i)  carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms (or on a fair and
reasonable basis so far as the shareholders of the Company
as a whole are concerned); and

(iii) conducted in accordance with the terms of the relevant
contracts.
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BEENEARBERSZP 2R Directors’ Interests in Contracts and Connected
(#&) Transactions (continued)

(b) BBEEERZME  HEBTEBMN (b) In respect of each of the Connected Transactions, the aggregate
TXRINEE-SE=5=/=+— amount of Connected Transactions within each such category
ALEEMREEEREERNZLRE for the year ended 31 March 2003 of the Group did not exceed
H(LREE] the relevant cap amounts (the “Cap Amounts”) stated below:

BE_ZZ=
SAZt+-HLEE
ZEIREH
Cap Amounts
for the year ended
ZHEH Type of transactions 31 March 2003
B
HK$
BEIR Construction 600,000,000

#EIR Renovation

— EEXERREABEA — with HKRI and its associates 7,000,000
— EBCDW Building Limited — with CDW Building Limited 65,000,000
MEREHEER Properties agency and management 10,000,000

REFE  AEEmEEXERFKETETH During the year, the Group has also acquired certain subsidiaries and

BLARAREENR  BREABE—RBNT associates which owned four pieces of land in Hong Kong and
Ex ZEQAREENRUREBRPER Dongguan, The People’s Republic of China from HKRI at a total
S e consideration of HK$180 million.

BREXFIEEEN  RABHEEAHER Saved as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
ABEIIVARRESRATEESHER Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
BEAREMNAFEREZBRERFER of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
R ENAERZEAHE subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 88% of the turnover of the Group and the largest customer,
which is a subsidiary of HKRI, accounted for about 58% of the total
turnover. Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates, or any shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
has any interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2003.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted for
less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in
Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the Group has maintained the
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (*ORSO Scheme”) and has obtained
an exemption satisfying the requirements of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance ("MPFO").

To comply with MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme"”) with voluntary contributions has been established. Existing
ORSO Scheme Members have been given a one-off choice on the MPF
exempted ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme. New employees must
join MPF Scheme when it commenced on 1 December 2000.

The Group strictly complies with the MPFO in making mandatory
contributions for its staff. Details of charges relating to the retirement
benefit schemes are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Post Balance Sheet Events

In May 2003, the Group has completed the acquisition of the 5th floor
of Shatin Industrial Centre, Shatin and a piece of land at Ping Che,
both of which are located in Hong Kong from independent third
parties at a total consideration of approximately HK$28.5 million from
internally generated funds. The property at Shatin is held for
investment purposes and the land at Ping Che is held for the Group’s
own use.

In June 2003, the Group has also acquired from an independent third
party the entire issued share capital of Retailcorp Limited which carries
on a wholesale health products business and operates a health
products retailing chain store business under the trade name of
“Health Plus” at a consideration to be determined.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
March 2003.

Audit Committee

The Company has an audit committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group.

The audit committee has two members, being the independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. Sun Tai Lun and Mr. Chan Pak Joe. Dr.
Sun Tai Lun has been appointed the chairman of the audit committee.
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Report of the Directors

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Auditors

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director

18 June 2003
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Report of the Auditors

EEPET T 15

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 59 to 116 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

57



58

B gsERkeasRAA

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

23 Gl S

ERNER

ARBMRRREBSHMASEANEEY
EAETERTE ERHEEREURES
AEREMBRRABER KBS ERE
NER  FEETLESRERASURR
REFENERET A - REENS
BERRBBESE BELAk BREMARE
R RRAEHERYEANKEZS S
B o

FERBHAERSNETERTER - LM
G-NAGHMABLENENRBERE
B UEEEGRONEE  REFHER

REFRERERRL  FHAENRE
EoHEHERE AR TCHEZS
BRBRMENENERRLRBRA - A
REMEEERIFEATIEREYTS
EHER o

=R

_'a

AREMARLANMBRRGEEED
R FAAKR ERER-TE=F=
R=+—-BMHERRLK BEXREEEZA
L2FENENNRERE  YERREE
RAKPINKERZREZERA -

EE » MWW &7
B “ET=FXAT/NH

2002/2003 4F 4}t
ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

Report of the Auditors

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March
2003 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Hong Kong, 18 June 2003
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

-t 1 “EECF

2003 2002

et BETT BT T

Notes HK$'000 HK$000

HEH Turnover 4 891,981 641,183
HEMAK Cost of sales (813,770) (549,170)
EF Gross profit 78,211 92,013
Hit g B WA Other operating income 6 9,790 5,448
DHER Distribution costs (5,063) (1,490)
THEX Administrative expenses (50,855) (52,069)
Hit&EM > Other operating expenses 7 (63) (7,230)
ZERA Profit from operations 32,020 36,672
HREH Finance costs (2) (121)
PhHBE LR EE Share of result of an associate (84) 1,120
SELREHBREXS Share of result of a jointly controlled entity 3,480 2
BREE AR F Profit before taxation 8 35,414 37,673
BB Taxation 10 (5,245) (6,426)
FEEMR Net profit for the year 30,169 31,247
BRE Dividends 11 7,092 32,500
SREF — EX (Bl Earnings per share — basic (HK cents) 12 10.6 11.0
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As at 31 March 2003

—ZZ2=F —EZCF
2003 72002
ftaE BETIT BETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FREAE Non-current assets
BEME Investment properties 13 19,422 1,200
ME - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 14 55,439 44,535
FIERRABRZME Properties held for development 15 170,605 —
Bena ks Interests in associates 17 10,919 3,003
HEEHEE 2R Interest in a jointly controlled entity 18 2,926 5,002
—FRERRES Retention money receivable
after one year 19 54,859 62,988
314,170 116,728
nEEE Current assets
58 Inventories 20 16,190 10,896
EWEHTIRER Amounts receivable on contract work 21 47,078 24,261
FEUE B 518 Progress payments receivable 22 29,561 123,976
- ERERRES Retention money receivable
within one year 19 60,525 48,308
R R ?ﬁ%&i‘ﬁﬁ Debtors, deposits and prepayments 23 29,385 27,801
e £t I—Hﬁﬁﬂ L2 Amount due from a jointly
» controlled entity 87 271
BHRE Investments in securities 24 40,486 16,485
AREHR Taxation recoverable 1,770 3,888
RITH ﬁ?&fﬁﬁ Bank balances and cash 120,907 345,540
345,989 601,426
pid IR Current liabilities
EASNIRERR Amounts payable on contract work 21 125,718 209,221
BNERARRIER Creditors and accrued charges 25 159,933 157,048
ENBEQANE Amount due to an associate - 1,586
eI BiE Taxation payable 156 3,279
285,807 371,134
RBEETE Net current assets 60,182 230,292
374,352 347,020
BER G Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 26 28,367 28,367
f#f Reserves 345,985 318,653
374,352 347,020

The financial statements on pages 59 to 116 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18
June 2003 and are signed on its behalf by:

ESOEZEE16EMYIKER  KEZEN-E
E-EXNATNBRE THATHESRREE

IHE Wong Sue Toa, Stewart B Tai Sai Ho
EERLE Managing Director EE Director
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2003 2002
ftaE BEFIT BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
EREEE Non-current assets
HEBARZRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 326,739 326,739
nEEE Current assets
HtbBWERN - BER Other debtors, deposits
BARIE and prepayments 127 —
FE U B /B ) B A Amounts due from subsidiaries 195,414 10,000
RITEE Bank balances 144 5
195,685 10,005
mBAR Current liabilities
P B D BB Amounts due to subsidiaries 164,708 7,350
ZitER Accrued expenses 432 282
eI BiE Taxation payable 22 —
165,162 7,632
RBEEFE Net current assets 30,523 2,373
357,262 329,112
B & R 6 {8 Capital and reserves
[LEN Share capital 26 28,367 28,367
EAE] Reserves 28 328,895 300,745
357,262 329,112
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K-22-F£RA-H

RESEEANRRR
BERARSH
ERATIA
Lw(27E4))
[ik<ipd

EEHA
AREAH
ExHRE

R-%2F
=B=1-8
EEa7
HE-ZE-E
Zf=t-HE
EEEXHRERE
HECEE-F
ZA=T-HL
EERERE
AERE
R-E5=%
=B=t-8

At 1 April 2001

Issue of new shares pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited
("Corporate Reorganisation”)

Net profit for the year

Dividend paid before the

Corporate Reorganisation

At 31 March 2002

Net profit for the year

Interim dividend paid in respect
of the year ended
31 March 2003

Proposed final dividend in
respect of the year ended
31 March 2003

At 31 March 2003

2002/2003 4F 4}t
ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

Elks R BARR BHRE HEGE RRGE  RiEA
Paid-in Share Contributed ~ Special  Goodwill  Dividend Accumulated ait
capital capital  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total
BEFr  BETn  BRTn  BRTn BRTn BETn BETn BETx
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
(i£28)  (Hiz2s)
(note 28)  (note 28)
62,401 - - 21,94 (78) — 264009 348273
(62,401) 28,367 34,034 - - - - -
- - - - - - 31,247 31,247
- - - - - - (32,500 (32,500)
- 28,367 34,034 21,941 (78) - 262,756 347,020
- - - - - - 30,169 30,169
_ - - - - - (2,837) (2,837)
_ - - - - 4,255 (4,255) -
- 28,367 34,034 21,941 (78) 425 285833 374352
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

RELBERZEER
BREE AR A
AR
TMEMENTEE

PEHEEHNERRE

=X ON
FISRX
e
HENE - BE
K&z s
EHEREZ
AEBRERE
HERSREZ
(ki) B1R

EEESEDR
EERTRE
FE (5m R
RSN TREREMN
RYEE R
D (1)
W R ] < 35 A
EUWHREHER
FER D (5 )

BYERR - BRERANRIE

(2 )
BREHIRER
(R)
A BRA R R EREM
BB E A RFRERD

RELEXB 2 REH
ENEBAEH
XfIFE

REEBEB R FHE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of result of an associate

Share of result of a jointly controlled entity

Interest income

Interest expenses

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Unrealised holding loss on
investments in securities

(Gain) loss on disposal of
investments in securities

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in amounts receivable on contract work

Decrease (increase) in progress
payments receivable

Increase in retention money receivable

Decrease (increase) in amount due
from a jointly controlled entity

(Increase) decrease in debtors,
deposits and prepayments

(Decrease) increase in amounts payable
on contract work

Increase in creditors and accrued charges

Decrease in amount due to an associate

Cash generated from operating activities
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2002/2003 4 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

—EE=H —EECF
2003 2002
BYETT BETF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
35,414 37,673
84 (1,120)
(3,480) )
(7,641) (4,539)
2 25
2,663 2,107
(151) (19)
63 52
(956) 3
25,998 34,180
(5,294) 2,157
(20,485) (1,596)
94,415 (90,675)
(4,088) (21,300)
184 (271)
(1,529) 2,825
(83,503) 78,087
2,833 17,934
(1,586) (7,428)
6,945 13,913
(5,700) (6,907)
(2) (25)
1,243 6,981
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2003

—¥%= “E2CF
2003 2002
s BETTT BETT
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
REEBZRER Cash flows from investing activities
W B A B Interest received 7,641 4,539
W ER B Dividend received 2,000 —
RERENE Purchase of investment properties (15,665) —
RENE  BE Purchase of property, plant and
ET equipment (18,485) (4,695)
HENE  BER Proceeds from disposal of property,
HEERIE plant and equipment 180 19
BERRAZZ Development costs for properties
MEZERER held for development (605) —
HEFHFRE Proceeds from disposal of
S FE investments in securities 17,315 26
AN Acquisition of subsidiaries 30 (169,997) —
REERNA2RE Investment in associates (10,000) —
REFEFERZ Return of investment from a jointly
REM K controlled entity 5,000 —
BARSEZRE Purchase of investments in securities (40,423) (16,412)
REREZEHER2RE Investment in a jointly controlled entity - (5,000)
B FEBEEER Advances to subsidiaries of
SEERAT HKR International
(TEXER] 2 Limited (“HKRI")
HERR - (4,299)
FEEER Repayments from subsidiaries of
MERRER HKRI - 316,203
(AR REREXEK Net cash (used in) generated from

ZBEEE investing activities (223,039) 290,381
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

—¥%= —2TCF
2003 2002
B¥TIT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000
REMEEXEBZRER Cash flows from financing activities
KRS Dividends paid (2,837) (30,000)
o) B 2 PR P B 2 ) Net repayment of advances from
B ERFE subsidiaries of HKRI — (22,712)
ARBEXB2REFHE Net cash used in financing activities (2,837) (52,712)
BekBe%E Net (decrease) increase in cash and
(Rl 2) 12 inF 58 cash equivalents (224,633) 244,650
ENHRER Cash and cash equivalents at
ReZE the beginning of the year 345,540 100,890
FERAERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at
KRBT the end of the year, representing
EHRRBRE bank balances and cash 120,907 345,540
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RAEE  AEBEERERZEME S
SMASEM 2 AMREET 28
STEBER (TS5 BHED ) K
SEABHRERBR 22 H AL
HBRSIERELER - LFEZLR
BEREBECES  NER B2
SIA e

R LR A REET 2 S ERE
AHAFERBAFE 2 RATEER
T8 BARAEFEHAHAR -

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2001 Second Revision) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange").

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are building construction,
interior and renovation works, supply and installation of building
materials, trading of health products and property investment
and development.

Adoption Of New And Revised Statements Of
Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a
number of new and revised Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP"s) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has
resulted in a change of the format of presentation of the cash
flow statement and the introduction of the statement of changes
in equity. Comparative amounts and disclosures for the prior year
have been restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has had no material
effect on the results for the current or prior years. Accordingly,
no prior period adjustment has been required.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003
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Adoption Of New And Revised Statements Of
Standard Accounting Practice (continued)

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised)
"Cash flow statements”. Under SSAP 15 (Revised), cash flows are
classified under three headings — operating, investing and
financing, rather than the previous five headings. Interest paid,
interest and dividends received, and dividends paid, which were
previously presented under a separate heading, are classified as
operating, investing and financing cash flows respectively. Cash
flows arising from taxes on income are classified as operating
activities, unless they can be separately identified with investing
or financing activities.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified for the revaluation of investment
properties and investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance
sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue

Revenue on construction or interior and renovation contracts is
recognised using the percentage of completion method by
reference to the value of work carried out during the year.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
property let under operating leases, is recognised on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive
dividends has been established.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration
over the fair value ascribed to the Group's share of the separable
net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary and was
eliminated against reserves immediately on acquisition for the
periods before 1 April 2001.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Any premium or discount arising on the acquisition of interests
in associates or interests in jointly controlled entities, representing
the excess or shortfall respectively of the purchase consideration
over the fair value ascribed to the Group’s share of the separable
net assets of the associate or jointly controlled entity at the date
of acquisition, was dealt with in the same manner as that
described above for goodwill for the periods before 1 April 2001.

On the disposal of an investment in a subsidiary, an associate or
a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill
previously eliminated against or credited to reserves is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 April 2001 is capitalised
and amortised over its estimated useful life.

On disposal of an investment in a subsidiary, an associate, or a
jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of outstanding
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held
for their investment potential, any rental income derived
therefrom being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market values
based on an annual professional valuation at the balance sheet
date. Any surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of
investment properties is credited or charged to the investment
property revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, in which case the excess of the
deficit over the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve is charged to the income statement.
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3. FEFGFBE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
HHEREMER  fIUEMERGEZ On disposal of investment properties, the balance on the
RENEEHRERESER ARG E investment property revaluation reserve attributable to the
A property disposed of is transferred to the income statement.
HAFHER_TF2RENELTT No depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties
LURE - which are held under leases with unexpired terms of more than

twenty years.

70

ME - BERZME Property, plant and equipment

ME - BEREE BRAERTER Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated

REBBEANE - depreciation and impairment losses.

EEEHESREREE BRI The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is

HERSHRREE  REABZB2E determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and

Bt E > TRkERARER the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income

statement.

M - BERZEZTEDRBEMGE Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,

AREHNESRESENERE  F plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over their

HnT estimated useful lives which are as follows:

HELH BEHEN Leasehold land Over the unexpired term
RIERFH of the relevant lease

BF iy 3 Buildings 20 years

HEE F Other assets 5 years
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Properties held for development

Properties held for development, which have not been identified
for any specific purpose, are shown as non-current assets and
are stated at cost less any impairment losses recognised.

Costs relating to the development of the properties are
capitalised and included as properties held for development until
such time they are identified for transfer to specific categories
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties or
properties for sale.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group is in a position
to exercise significant influence, including participation in
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.

The results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The carrying amount of such interests is reduced
to recognise any impairment losses recognised.

Where a group enterprise transacts with an associate of the
Group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are
referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results, assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The carrying amount of such
interests is reduced to recognise any impairment losses
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, other costs that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction or interior and renovation
contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs
are recognised in the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date,
as measured by surveys on work performed.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

When the outcome of a construction or interior and renovation
contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that is probable will be
recoverable and contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis
and are initially measured at cost.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are
measured at fair value on subsequent reporting dates.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains
and losses are included in net profit or loss for the period. For
other securities, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in
equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is included
in net profit or loss for the period.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year after
adjusting for items which are non-assessable or disallowed.
Certain items of income and expense are recognised for tax
purposes in a different accounting period from that in which
they are recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect
of the resulting timing differences, computed under the liability
method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or
asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Retirement benefit cost

Contributions payable to the Group’s defined contribution

retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they
fall due.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such
currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on the balance
sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt with
in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the
Group's translation reserve. Such translation differences are
recognised as income or expenses in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.
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4. EXEE 4. Turnover
EEBENAFECETZENIRE Turnover represents the aggregate of the value of contract work
B - HERZEEEMNBFIBHEER carried out, the sales proceeds derived from supply and
B HEERmABRIE - BEHMERE installation of building materials, sales proceeds of goods sold,
BERE2BA  URESBRAZ revenue from provision of properties agency and management
BE IMOT services and gross rental income during the year, and is analysed
as follows:

—22=H “EECF

2003 2002

B¥TIT BETT

HK$’000 HK$000

B Construction 714,648 531,610

EoMREE Interior and renovation 93,272 46,367

EEME Building materials 80,837 63,176

REER Health products 1,916 —

MERE Properties investment 452 30

MERERER Properties agency and
management 856 —

891,981 641,183
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5. ¥R ESEER 5. Business And Geographical Segments
AREERE AEERKFELCEHE For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
—BESATIE - HORER - BEM seven principal operating divisions — construction, interior and
B REER  MERE  MERER renovation, building materials, health products, properties
B URMERRE - AEEREHE investment, properties agency and management and properties

EREERIN LIMKEHIEREE - development. These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.
(a) X8R (a) Business segments
nERE
RER
REREE REHH REER WERE  Properties WEER
BE  Interiorand Building Health Properties  agencyand  Properties Lt #e
Construction renovation materials products  investment management development Eliminations ~Consolidated
L BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEo33z% For the year ended
ZAZt-BLEE 31 March 2003
ERE TURNOVER
HHEE External sales 714,648 93,212 80,837 1916 5 856 - - 891,981
ZEEBHHE Inter-segment sales - 84,724 47,004 141 — — — (131,869) —
& Total 714,648 177,9% 127,841 2,057 452 856 - (131,869) 891,981
FEEBMIHERN Inter-segment sales are charged
ROTRERTE at prevailing market rates.
& RESULTS
SEEE Segment result 23,006 2,046 2,606 (3,644) (342) 380 (20) 19 24,051
HiEERA Other operating income 9,790
HigERY Other operating expenses 63)
FARER Unallocated expenses (1,758)
LEER Profit from operations 32,020
BHER Finance costs [0)]
MEBEATEE Share of result of an associate — — (84) - - - — (84)
MMERAFBHRRER Share of result of a jointly controlled entity 3480 - - - - - - 3480
BEAIER Profit before taxation 35414
HE Taxation (5,245)
EEMA Net profit for the year 30,169
I
RZBBZEZA=+-RA  Asat31March 2003
RE ASSETS
SEEE Segment assets 320,688 20279 58,353 6,781 25,600 1,336 170,662 603,699
BENA 2 BR Interests in associates - - 919 - - - 10,000 10,919
HALHEE 2 BE Interest in a jointly controlled entity 3013 - - - - - - 3013
FARLAEE Unallocated corporate assets 4258
GABEE Consolidated total assets 660,159
I
A LIABILITIES
2EER Segment liabilities 259,926 11,408 12177 791 861 106 66 285,335
FPBRAAERE Unallocated corporate liabilities an
GeBeR Consolidated total liabilities 285,807
I
RtEH OTHER INFORMATION
% BERZERE Additions of property, plant and equipment 14,461 1271 159 754 - 407 - 18,485
BARENE Additions of investment properties - - - - 15,665 - — 15,665
BABERRAE2NE Additions of properties held for development - - - - - — 170,605 170,605
BABEBERRARZ Additions of associates holding properties
M%ZW“" held for development - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Depreciation 4,448 14 389 32 - 12 - 4,995

77



Bl g A RAA 2002/2003 4 &

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

HABS R B

HE-_ZEE=F=-A=+—BHItFE )
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2003

aNy H H .
5. ¥RRHESFEER @ 5. Business And Geographical Segments (continued)
RiiRE BEHH MERR
BH®  Interior and Building Properties E§) e
Construction renovation materials investment  Eliminations Consolidated
BEFT BEFT BETT BETFT BETFT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEz-Z3-f% For the year ended
ZA=t-BLEE 31 March 2002
ExE TURNOVER
HMNEE External sales 531,610 46,367 63,176 30 — 641,183
EEEBBZHE Inter-segment sales - 29,715 50,976 — (80,691) -
@t Total 531,610 76,082 114,152 30 (80,691) 641,183
BREEBEHERN Inter-segment sales are charged
ROMSERTE at prevailing market rates.
E 3] RESULTS
PEER Segment result 31,690 2,856 4,312 22 43 38,923
HtrgERA Other operating income 5,448
Hittg B Other operating expenses (7,230)
ROEWEAX Unallocated expenses (469)
g R Profit from operations 36,672
HEER Finance costs (121)
MMEBE N T EE Share of result of an associate — — 1,120 — — 1,120
DEREEREES Share of result of a jointly controlled entity 2 - - — — 2
B AR R Profit before taxation 37,673
BE Taxation (6,426)
FRELF Net profit for the year 31,247
I
W-BZ-F¥=A=+-8 As at 31 March 2002
RE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 629,632 10,483 48,452 1,200 — 689,767
BENE 2R Interest in an associate — — 3,003 — — 3,003
HEZHER R Interest in a jointly controlled entity 5,002 - - — — 5,002
APBAAEE Unallocated corporate assets 20,382
GREBEE Consolidated total assets 718,154
—
A LIABILITIES
PEEE Segment liabilities 349,446 5,185 12,941 — — 367,572
RPBAREE Unallocated corporate liabilities 3,562
GEBaR Consolidated total liabilities 371,134
—
HrgH OTHER INFORMATION
NE - BER Additions of property, plant and
RERE equipment 3,892 28 775 — — 4,695

wE Depreciation 4,796 124 368 — — 5,288
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5. ¥R RESEER @) 5. Business And Geographical Segments (continued)
(b) MEEXRFENERZEM  £H (b) Following the additions of new segments during the year,
ERlzhBHFEEN  URE comparative figures for business segments have been
AEEZ2HAR At =F restated to conform with the current year presentation.
ECFEETRERERNE Accordingly, certain income statement items for 2002 have

B also been restated.

() HEDHE (c) Geographical segments
REZ-2T=F=A=+—H All the Group's operations and significant segment assets
tMEFE  XEBEHEER during the two years ended 31 March 2003 were in Hong

BEESEEEUUNEB - Kong.

6. HfttEEWA 6. Other Operating Income
—ZZ=F “ERCH
2003 2002
BT BET T
HK$'000 HK$000
HiEBWARE Other operating income

includes:

MEWA Interest income 7,641 4,539
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7. HittEERX 7. Other Operating Expenses
—ZT=F —EBECF
2003 2002
BETIT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$’000
Hit&EMEEE Other operating expenses
comprise:
EHREZKRER Unrealised holding loss on
B8 investments in securities (63) (52)
THEHA Listing expenses - (7,175)
HERSRECVER Loss on disposal of
investments in securities —_ (3)

(63) (7,230)
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8.

Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation has
been arrived at
after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 9(i))
— Fees
— Other emoluments

Other staff costs

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions for other
staff (note 34)

Total staff costs

Depreciation

Auditors’ remuneration

Operating lease rentals in
respect of rented premises

Interest on bank and other
borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

and after crediting:

Gain on disposal of
investments in securities
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Rental income under operating
leases less outgoings
(Gross rental income:
2003: HK$452,000
(2002: HK$30,000))
Sub-leasing income
less outgoings
(Gross sub-leasing income:
2003 HK$324,000
(2002: HK$371,000))
Expenses capitalised in cost
of contract work:
— Depreciation
— Operating lease rentals
in respect of plant
and machinery

—ge=F —I=f
2003 2002
EEFT  EEFx
HK$'000 HK$°000
500 125
6,946 6,696
90,255 84,346
4,940 3,972
102,641 95,139
2,663 2,107
635 277
1,627 2,437

2 25

956 —

151 19

15 22

142 168
2,332 3,181
3,063 6,287

81



HEaAgERAERAA 2002/2003 4 &

ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

jﬂ’%i&%ﬁﬁnf

BT -F=ZA=+—HIFE )
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2003

82

9. EXKEEME 9. Directors’ And Employees’ Emoluments
(i) E=8< (i) Directors’ emoluments
k- 1333 —2ECF
2003 2002
BYTT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ok Fees
U7 Executive 200 —
FH1T Non-executive 300 125
500 125
2 (#7) - Other emoluments (executive):
HERHEMERN Salaries and other benefits 3,484 3,052
TERBRBS Performance related
incentive payments 2,980 3,300
RICERGEIGR Retirement benefit
scheme contributions 482 344
6,946 6,696
7,446 6,821
INTFESZHMEBTHIAR The emoluments paid to the directors are within the following
bands:
k-1 3 —EECF
2003 2002
ZRBE-BETR Nil to HK$1,000,000 7 7
BE_BEZT—ZE HK$2,000,001 -
BE_BRETER HK$2,500,000 1 1
BENEES-—E HK$4,000,001 -
BENAERTER HK$4,500,000 1 1
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LTHESEHMEBRNTHAR :

ZEER-HER
BRE-BEE-E
BE-BITER

AEE  AEETENESRESHE
EXAME  EARBMAREES M
AREEZRE - IBBHE  RAF
EVEESHRETHE -

9. EEXKEEME @) 9. Directors’ And Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
(i) EEM= (i) Employees’ emoluments
AEE LERBHFALEER During the year, the five highest paid individuals included
ZEE(ZEE-F WMKE two directors (2002: two directors), details of whose
F) ZMEEBZMEHBER emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
X -HB=EZBESHALZH remaining three highest paid individuals were as follows:
SWT
i <1 8- —EBECF
2003 2002
BYTTT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
HeREMBEA Salaries and other
benefits 2,392 1,906
IERERBS Performance related
incentive payments 390 880
BRBEAGEMES Retirement benefit
scheme contributions 275 178
3,057 2,964

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within
the following bands:

=¥ —2ZCF

2003 2002

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 2
HK$1,000,001 -

HK$1,500,000 2 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors and highest paid employees as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
and no director waived any emoluments during the year.

83



84

EhagahkaRaed
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

Zhﬁ?ﬁiégﬁﬁﬁii

E-RE=F-A=+—HLEFE

2002/2003 4F 4}t
ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2003

10. #I18

THWMT

BENEH
KEE
BEFE (BEERE)
BETE

EiEEE AR RAREGER
ZERNEH

KEE
BEFERERR

EBRIERIREE T ARRERIR
BAZTA(CEE=E  ERZTH)
5 o

10. Taxation

-t - 2 “2TCF
2003 2002
BT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year 4,290 6,555
Under(over)provision
in prior years 399 (298)
Share of Hong Kong Profits
Tax of associate and
jointly controlled entity
Current year 556 168
Underprovision in
prior years — 1
5,245 6,426

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2002:

estimated assessable profit for the year.

16%) of the
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11.

12.

iz 2

ARECRERSRTHREBRER
—fl - AEEHBE_ANT=ZBLT
TeBEZTEE=-A=1+-HLF
B ARA-BHEARELIEDN
EEEXERz-BHELR (RER
ZBRR) XAPHREBE=TER
R Bre AR (ERAEAR) o
XER-EMBRF (HMERARER

ZBRRZ-)XATHRERB-ER
T&x-
ESEERRBEABREEREE -

Tl BEZREASRRRRRBE
REL#tk-

BRER

BRERBANDREREEMHFBE=
FETREATR(CE2F A=
FT-BEZTMEtTR)  REZ-ZTT
ZEZA=+-HUERMEFERCET
%17 £283,671,086 5T &

BE-ZZ=F=-A=1t-HLMEF
EXEEEHBEXECERBR B
It TEZRERBERN -

11.

12.

Dividends

An interim dividend at HK1 cent per share, totalling
HK$2,837,000 was declared and paid by the Company during
the year. For the year ended 31 March 2002, an interim dividend
of HK$30,000,000 was paid before the Corporate Reorganisation
by a subsidiary of the Company to a subsidiary of HKRI, its then
shareholder. An interim dividend of HK$2,500,000 was also paid
before the Corporate Reorganisation by the associate to a
subsidiary of HKRI, one of the then shareholders of the associate.

A final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share, totalling HK$4,255,000
has been proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the net profit for the year of HK$30,169,000 (2002:
HK$31,247,000) and on the 283,671,086 shares for the two years
ended 31 March 2003.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in existence
for the two years ended 31 March 2003. Accordingly, no diluted
earnings per share was presented.
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13. REWZ 13. Investment Properties
i 2 “EECZH
2003 2002
BETTT BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
9 At beginning of the year 1,200 1,200
RNE Additions 15,665 —
ME - BERFRER2LH Transfer from land and
REFZEH buildings under property,
plant and equipment 2,557 —
E# At end of the year 19,422 1,200
REMECREBEELREEZY The carrying amount of investment properties comprises
¥ HHEEHWNT properties in Hong Kong under leases as follows:
-t 1 X —EECF
2003 2002
BT BETF T
HK$'000 HK$°000
REHEE Long lease 1,200 1,200
hHHE Medium-term lease 18,222 —
19,422 1,200
BUMEAEMPERTERAREL The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31
FmEREE R-ET=F=A=1+- March 2003 by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, an independent
AERAEEzRENR  RERBE property valuer on an open market value basis at an aggregate
“tEBR - EEZRANHMSE amount of HK$20,200,000. The directors consider that the impact
BENESTRER  FARILZELRRE of the changes in the open market value is not significant and
URBRBRENERIBRREERZA accordingly no adjustment has been made to reflect the open
HhEEHE - market value of the investment properties as at the balance sheet

date in the financial statements.
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14. Y1 - BEKRE 14. Property, Plant And Equipment

BHRRE
TiREF BERRHE Furniture - RE
Land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor it
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
BETR BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5@ THE GROUP
BF cosT
R=Z2Z-4MA-A At 1 April 2002 37,482 20,385 6,896 1,402 9,194 75,359
B Additions 14,796 120 1,141 283 1,545 18,485
BAREME Transfer to investment
properties (2,668) — - - — (2,668)
HE Disposals — (1,070) (1,037) (732) (1,126) (3,965)
RZEZ=%=fA=+-H At 31 March 2003 49,610 19,435 7,600 953 9,613 87,211
¥ DEPRECIATION
R=2Z-4MA-A At 1 April 2002 1,974 16,415 4,175 1 7,488 30,824
EERE Provided for the year 1,204 1,503 1,276 172 840 4,995
BAREMERHME Eliminated on transfer
to investment properties (111) - — — — (111)
HERH Eliminated on disposals — (1,070) (1,037) (704) (1,125) (3,936)
RZEZ=4=ZA=1-H At 31 March 2003 3,067 16,848 4,414 240 7,203 31,772
RERE NET BOOK VALUES
RZZEE=%=f=1-H At 31 March 2003 46,543 2,587 3,186 713 2,410 55,439
R-BE-E=fA=+-H At 31 March 2002 35,508 3,970 2,721 630 1,706 44,535
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14. Y15 - BMEKRE @)

THRET 2 RAERELRER
ZHE - HEEHAT

RAHEE
FHEE

15. SFRREAB 2

3
FAKBMERREEA

e

HERRABZMENLRNES  LoAF
HAERASE -

14. Property, Plant And Equipment (continued)

-t - 2 “2TCF
2003 2002
BT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The carrying amount of land
and buildings comprises
properties in Hong Kong
under leases as follows
Long lease 2,232 2,260
Medium term lease 44,311 33,248
46,543 35,508

15. Properties Held For Development

BEFT
HK$°000
cosT
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year 170,000
Additions 605
At 31 March 2003 170,605
At 31 March 2002 —

The properties held for development are in Hong Kong and held
under medium term leases.
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16. fIB AR ZIRE 16. Investments In Subsidiaries
e 3|
THE COMPANY
“ETSERIET-E
2003 & 2002
BEF T
HK$'000
FLmR®D  BEAE Unlisted shares, at cost 326,739
RERMBARIZRREKA  HTREA The deemed cost of the investments in subsidiaries is based on
AEARZELARALARMHEA A the fair values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries at
B MEARZHBEEREFEATER the time they became subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to
o the Corporate Reorganisation.
RZBE=F=ZA=+—-AXQATWE Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2003 are
ARIZFBEERMEIS5 set out in note 35.
17. BBE QR 2 fEm 17. Interests In Associates
t- 3 18- 3 “EECE
2003 2002
BETIT BETTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MMEEEFE Share of net assets 10,919 3,003
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7. BERBZRE @) 17. Interests In Associates (continued)
R-BE=F=ZR=+-HFKEHE Details of the Group's associates as at 31 March 2003 are as
ABZFHENT follows:
&F 1 R 3L IE@EE FREEE
B Z B BEERZLLE
Place of Principal Attributable
BEARZEE incorporation/ place equity interest TEEH
Name of associate establishment of operation held by the Group  Principal activities
BRREERAA & i BAaZET REZR
Berville Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% Investment holding
Limited
REHEERRAR REAR REAR BAZET MERERE
BRAF HAE HAE
Dongguan Kee Hing People’s People’s 50% Property development
Real Estate Republic Republic
Development of China of China
Limited
REHBEXME REAR REAR BAZET MEBRR
BRAR HAE HAE
Dongguan Kee Sing People’s People’s 50% Property development
Real Estate Republic Republic
Development of China of China
Limited
BEERATF &g i BAZET REZR
Fairwide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% Investment holding
EEERLARAR 0 & BAZET REFERIEER
Hanison Concrete Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% Ceased operation

Limited during the year
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HEZEFER 2 ER 18. Interest In A Jointly Controlled Entity
- - 8- 2 “EECZH
2003 2002
BYTT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
2MEEERE Share of net assets 2,926 5,002
R-ZEZ=F=ZR=+t-BAKEH Details of the Group's interest in a jointly controlled entity as at
BHBRZFENT ¢ 31 March 2003 are as follows:
£ 3 )i 1174
ITERE ERgal
4.} Percentage
EBEEpX Principal of interest
HEARHERZEE Form of place of attributable E 3031
Name of jointly business structure operation to the Group Nature of business

controlled entity

e — BEEE 0T KA EEER BB BAZET BFEg
Hip Hing-Hanison Body unincorporate Hong Kong 50% Building construction
Joint Venture
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19. EWREE 19. Retention Money Receivable
i -1 -4 3 —EECF
2003 2002
BYTTT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$°000
W T 5% 1E Retention money
ZRES receivable from:
EXERZHELR Subsidiaries of HKRI 71,037 78,136
HAARETERREBE A company associated
2T with a substantial
shareholder of the
Company 4,525 —
F= Third parties 39,822 33,160
115,384 111,296
B BERRBEELR Less: Amount receivable
—FRERZHE within one year
included in current
assets (60,525) (48,308)
—FREW 2 FRIE Amount receivable after
one year 54,859 62,988
THEEREN IR RIEEFRZ The amount represents retention money in respect of the

REE - progress payments receivable on the contract works.
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20. FE 20. Inventories
—EECHF —EECHE
2003 2002
BY¥TTT BET T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEME Building materials 12,955 10,896
REEM Health products 3,235 —
16,190 10,896
BAE At cost 15,742 10,896
R FE At net realisable value 448 —
16,190 10,896
21. B () 8 TR 21. Amounts Receivable (Payable) On Contract
Work
—E2= —BECF
2003 2002
BY¥TT BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
FIEX ZEHRAE Contract costs incurred plus
MEERFE profits less
REE losses recognised 2,269,948 1,807,344
B EER Less: Progress billings (2,348,588) (1,992,304)
(78,640) (184,960)
B Comprising:
FElEHIRIER Amounts receivable on
contract work 47,078 24,261
ENEHNIRER Amounts payable on
contract work (125,718) (209,221)
(78,640) (184,960)
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22. BWGEERIA 22. Progress Payments Receivable
RUEEREETERRESE 2ER Progress payments receivable represent the amounts receivable,
BERBIE BREEANIEERER after deduction of retention money, for construction services
STHREXMN - HERCREIRZE which usually fall due within 30 days after the work is certified.
WHE REEBEEWINE  HPE Against the amounts receivable for work certified, retention
ARZET-REZTIHEE  MHEHKB money is usually withheld. 50% of the retention money is
ARETHREEBEEREERRE normally due upon completion and the remaining 50% portion
i o is due upon finalisation of the construction accounts.

=F “EECE
2003 2002
BETTT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BN THIRIE 2 EERIE Progress payments
receivable from:
EXER 2B E Subsidiaries of HKRI 10,267 97,986
E= Third parties 19,294 25,990
29,561 123,976
BWEEREBEZRRIMMOT : The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as follows:
—¥%= —2TCF
2003 2002
BETFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$°000
=+8RK Within 30 days 28,468 97,431
=t—-ZXxt+H 31 - 60 days - 19,903
AT—ZEATH 61 - 90 days — 1
BBA+AH Over 90 days 1,093 6,641

29,561 123,976
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23. BWERR » RERFANRIEA 23. Debtors, Deposits And Prepayments

t- -3 1 3 “EECF
2003 2002
BETIT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$’000
FE W R X Debtors 15,812 18,112
Hitn BRI Other receivables 5,151 7,452
re Deposits 8,143 2,183
AN RIE Prepayments 279 54
29,385 27,801
FRE-RETHEF=TAZRE The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
2o normally 30 days.
BEAEVER - ReRBNTREZE The aged analysis of debtors included in debtors, deposits and
KRR ZERAMMT prepayments is as follows:
—Z2=K “EECF
2003 2002
BETIT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ATHRA Within 60 days 13,287 14,008
AT—ZhTH 61 - 90 days 750 1,903
HBBATH Over 90 days 1,775 2,201
15,812 18,112
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23. BWERR ~ RERFENRE 23. Debtors, Deposits And Prepayments (continued)
(#)
AU EWIRRABE 2B EKRE Included in the above debtors are amounts due from related
EATHESMHEZRENT ! parties of trading nature as follows:
—Z2=K “EECF
2003 2002
BETIT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB M B 1 F) Subsidiaries of HKRI 1,518 1,162
HEADNRFERFEHEE A company associated with
ZAF a substantial shareholder
of the Company 3,330 114
HEXERHBELRMERE Property management funds
ZMEEERES which are managed by
subsidiaries of HKRI 94 579

4,942 1,855
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wHRE 24. Investments In Securities
—ZZ=F “EECZH
2003 2002
BETTT BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
REES TRADING SECURITIES
RAFES Equity securities:
REBLS Listed in Hong Kong 63 126
kLm Unlisted — 16,359
63 16,485
BHES Debt securities:
kLm Unlisted 40,423 —
BATEFZBE Total at fair value 40,486 16,485
thESZME Market value of listed
securities 63 126
RIEE=F=-B=1+—-Hz¥LHmE The unlisted debt securities as at 31 March 2003 represent
BESDESRBERABEZATM interest bearing instruments issued by financial institutions or
BIZABHNEZES  MR=E2= reputable companies whereas the unlisted equity securities in
F2H EMRAERSNE-—ZEmKE 2002 represented preference shares issued by financial
BIO2BEER UREERRAFEAN institutions. Those securities are stated at their fair value at the
ik o balance sheet date.
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25. BNERMKAETEH 25. Creditors And Accrued Charges

—ZZ=F g =2
2003 2002
BETTT BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
FE A BRX Creditors 42,392 44,284
EAREE Retention payable 51,252 48,600
ZIAHARER Accrued cost and charges 60,790 59,989
7 I W B 2 FRI8 Temporary receipts 4,550 4,151
AR E Deposits received 949 24
159,933 157,048

BREENERRZTEARCIARE The aged analysis of creditors included in creditors and accrued

HHRAZERINNOT charges is as follows:

-t 1 S —2TCF
2003 2002
BETFT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$°000
ATHR Within 60 days 41,530 42,277
AT—ZATH 61 - 90 days — 748
BBRNTA Over 90 days 862 1,259
42,392 44,284
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25. ENBRMRKEZFER @) 25. Creditors And Accrued Charges (continued)

ELARNRIAEEENEEALR
BEMHEZRENT

Included in the above creditors are amounts due to related
parties of trading nature as follows:

k-1 3 —EECF
2003 2002
BEFIT BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
3£ B B 2 B A A Subsidiaries of HKRI 87 601
26. BR7< 26. Share Capital
B8 E BET T
No. of shares HK$'000
ETE Authorised:
REMEIEEREE Shares of HK$0.10 each
BE—22R7 On incorporation 3,500,000 350
BRAIE I (T X Hiat) Increase of share capital
(Note below) 796,500,000 79,650
RIEZEZER-ZT=F Balance as at 31 March
ZA=t+—-Hz&e 2002 and 2003 800,000,000 80,000
et Note:

BER-ZFE-FE+-A=1+-BALTE
Bl -RRCEAMRER  ADRTEERAK
EELXEREOERYE -—ZSHIRA
796,500,000 % » HAB=+HETEME
BENTET -

Pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the
Company on 21 December 2001, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$350,000 to HK$80,000,000 by the
creation of 796,500,000 additional shares of HK$0.10 each.
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26. [R7R (&) 26. Share Capital (continued)
B8 E BETT
No. of shares HK$'000
BETRAE Issued and fully paid:
PAER B 3L B B IR 1R Shares of HK$0.10 each
BE—-Z2RH On incorporation
(FXHKizt(a)) (Note (a) below) 1 —
REARBART Issue pursuant to the
(F X Ktz (b)) Corporate Reorganisation
(Note (b) below) 283,671,085 28,367
R-ZZEE-FR-FTE=F Balance as at 31 March
ZR=t-Hez&&K 2002 and 2003 283,671,086 28,367
et Notes:

(@) ARARR=TEZ-FAA-+HIM (@)  The Company was incorporated on 20 September 2001 with an
B3 EERAABE=1THET authorised share capital of HK$350,000, divided into 3,500,000
23,500,000 REREEBE—= shares of HK$0.1 each. One share was allotted, for cash at par, to
MR - REIE —RRGHZEENR the subscriber of the Company on the same date.
CHMBEARNTZRBEA ©

(b) R=TE-F-A=H REAFAE (b)  On 3 January 2002, the Company issued a total number of
8 ARRBTEREEEE -2 283,671,085 new shares of HK$0.10 each, credited as fully paid,
D o #%283,671,0850 + ASR to HKRI or as it directed pursuant to the Corporate
SIRBE  TEEEBRRREETRR Reorganisation.

1 o
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BERRAESTE 27. Share Option Scheme
REARD RN Z2BRET S ([t Pursuant to the Company’s existing share option scheme (the
2 (W=22-F-R=AEHEM “Scheme") which was adopted on 3 January 2002 and became

“EECF-ANAAEREAAT A effective on 9 January 2002, all directors (including independent

WBABR, /3 HEARMEES non-executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of

(BEBVFHTES)  2REERE the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to

BRESHTTECER - BREZT participate in the Scheme. The exercise price of the option shall

FEXETERTI=ZEZ2REE be no less than the higher of:

() BXIFRARLAMBLCEHR ()  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
BRI zRORHE ZALAE the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
RE¥AR) ; on the date of grant, which must be a business day;

(i) BEXPTRARER L A H A T @ (i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
RFEXARE 2B ERERM stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
mzRHFIRTHE & Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) RORBKHBHZEE - (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company on the
date of grant.

REMNERESACTBE - THEAR A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the acceptance of
o the option.

RRRRZETAERMN B AL RT L No option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
B RE o
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28. f#1E 28. Reserves

b, ¥/ THE COMPANY

R iRR BB RE Rtad

Share Dividend Accumulated st
premium reserve profits Total
BETFT BETT BYEFT BETFT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
REEAELE Arising from the
Corporate
Reorganisation 298,372 — — 298,372
HAR AR Net profit for
the period — — 2,373 2,373
R-ZZEE-HZA=t-H At 31 March 2002 298,372 — 2,373 300,745
EEMA Net profit for the year - - 30,987 30,987
BZ-ZZ=%=F=1+—H Interim dividend paid
tEEERFTHRE in respect of the
year ended 31 March
2003 — — (2,837) (2,837)
BE-ZEZ=F=8A=t-H  Proprosed final dividend
LEERBRERERE in respect of the
year ended 31 March
2003 — 4,255 (4,255) (—)
RZEE=F=F=+—H At 31 March 2003 298,372 4,255 26,268 328,895
RZBE=F=ZA=+—-H > The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
ARAR RS IKTRR 2 #EHE 31 March 2003 represent the aggregate of share premium, dividend
ERDHE BREREER RS reserve and accumulated profits of HK$328,895,000 (2002:
,miﬁuné%\%‘;i,%ﬁ%‘:{*—?)\ﬁ)\ HK$300,745,000).
ThEETR(ZEE-E:
B=RZLtTNERTT) °
DR ZRODRE  BEZSH Share premium of the Company represents the difference between the
BRARAMAKRRBRZHE LA aggregate net assets values of the subsidiaries at the date on which
ER MBARZEEFER they became subsidiaries of the Company, and the nominal amount of
BoOHEAREARAQRDE the Company’s shares issued at the time of the Corporate

TROZEBEZEZESRE - Reorganisation.
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28. f#E @)
.30

AEEZBARE  BERADAWEZ
ERARZHBRARABEENDT
EARANECRTROEEZESE

AEERRIREE  BEAREAREZLT
ERAREARNEEER 2 ERRRR
AEEHRE -

RZEE_F=F=+—-HRZEE=
F=ZB=1+—-8  EafBERUT
DNERE 2 BIHREF

BeENTE

HEZEGEE

28. Reserves (continued)
THE GROUP

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries at the
date on which they were acquired by the Company, and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued at the time of
the Corporate Reorganisation.

Special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of
contributions from the then shareholders of the companies
comprising the Group and other subsidiaries of HKRI before the
Corporate Reorganisation.

The accumulated profits at 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002
include the following accumulated profits retained by:

-t 12 g g3

2003 2002

BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$°000

An associate 918 3,002
A jointly controlled entity 2,926 2
3,844 3,004
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29. REBIEIENIE 29. Unprovided Deferred Taxation
REER  REBEELHERE (EE) At the balance sheet date, the major components of the
ZEERMUMT unprovided deferred taxation liability (asset) are as follows:
-t £ S
2003 2002
BT BETF T
HK$'000 HK$°000
BERBTERANTIER Tax effect of timing
mEXE : differences because of:
BREFERZEER Excess of tax depreciation
SiER allowances over
accounting depreciation 172 650
BEERLE Taxation losses carried forward (2,055) (2,173)
(1,883) (1,523)
HRARESERARERELHEEE The deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial
ANER  BRZEEL RN BRE statements as it is not certain that the asset will be crystallised
W o in the foreseeable future.
FERBBELHRENT : The unprovided deferred taxation for the year is as follows:
—ZE=F —EEH
2003 2002
BT BETF T
HK$'000 HK$°000
EERTYEERBEEM Net deferred taxation credit
I RBTEMEEZ (charge) for the year arising
BEERBIE R () F8 ¢ from tax effect of timing
differences attributable to:
BEMERNREEEHTES Difference between tax
MEZER depreciation allowances
and accounting depreciation 478 231
(BR) EstHiBEE Taxation losses
(utilised) accrued (118) 163
360 394
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30. B A ] 30. Acquisition Of Subsidiaries
R-BE=F=A=+—-H FEEK On 31 March 2003, the Group acquired 100% interest in Amwell
#Amwell Investments Limited X &) Investments Limited and Wisdom Concept Development Limited
BRBERARIZBESZ—BEDZ R whose assets and liabilities on acquisition were as follows:

BRZMELCAZEERERNT ¢

BEF T
HK$000
FrEEEFE Net assets acquired:
BERRAR2YE Properties held for development 170,000
RUERR - RERBARE Debtors, deposits and prepayments 55
RITEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 3
EAERZRZFER Creditors and accrued charges (52)
S BiE Taxation payable (6)
BRRER Shareholders’ loans (164,708)
5,292
Wiz RREM Acquisition of shareholders’ loans 164,708
AEEWEZEREFE Net assets acquired by the Group 170,000
FRAR Satisfied by:
RERE Cash consideration 170,000
RWBEEE2REREFE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
RERE Cash consideration 170,000
PR ITHESRRS Bank balances and cash acquired (3)
169,997
BUBEZHBARHAEEBREZ_2% The acquired subsidiaries contributed insignificant turnover,
SE-A=t-HUEFECEEE ¥ results and operating cash flows to the Group for the year ended
BREERENRERIBENERM o 31 March 2003.
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31.

32.

HZREE

RZZZ=H=A=1-H X 5EH
Ky-—HEEHEENERSNEN T
“ENTR(CEEZE B 2ETE
WEREBOBRTELER -

REER  ARRALTEEAHAREE

BRI
REER  REBB THIRIE

RENE  BERRE
ZEE

— BRI HERIIR
BBHRERA
BARBYRZERE

— AT HERIIR
MEHERA

REER  ARRALEERERAE

31.

32.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2003, the Group had given guarantees to a bank in
respect of performance bonds granted to the jointly controlled
entity amounting to approximately HK$4,428,000 (2002: Nil).

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no material
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:

—22=H “EECF
2003 2002
EMTT BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Commitments for the
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
— contracted for but not
provided in financial
statements 10,335 863
Commitments for the
acquisition of investment
properties
— contracted for but not
provided in financial
statements 22,400 —

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no material capital
commitments.
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33. REHEAE 33. Operating Lease Commitments
AMEA As lessee
REER  AEEREFTHELER At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
NERTHREFZARREHRSEAE future minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
mr under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
—¥%= —2TCF
2003 2002
BETIT BETT
HK$'000 HK$°000
—FR Within one year 1,406 1,814
E_ZERE (BEEEME) In the second to fifth year
inclusive 1,775 2,908
3,181 4,722
RERPVHSEREERRLAEYE Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group
PEREHES2ES - BOATE for its office properties, warehouses and shops. Leases are
B FHFHAZF o negotiable for an average term of three years.
REER  RARUELERLOAE o The Company had no operating lease commitments at the

balance sheet date.
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33. KEHEAE @) 33. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
HHEA As lessor
REER  AEECEBFY B8 At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
REN¥EZAZKEASOT : tenants for the following future minimum lease payments in

respect of the investment properties:

it £ X —EECF
2003 2002
BT BETF T
HK$'000 HK$°000
—FR Within one year 2,231 36
F_ZERE (BEEEME) In the second to fifth year
inclusive 8,349 38
BBAF Over five years 288 —
10,868 74
AEERBREVEZEESRARBE Property rental income earned from investment properties
MtEE=FTR(=2F=F: BR= during the year was HK$452,000 (2002: HK$30,000). Leases are
Bn) - HAARTER FHEHAR negotiable for an average term of five years.
ﬂi °
34, BRRERIFHE 34. Retirement Benefit Schemes
BER-_ZESFE+-A—-RABBET With the implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund
BHEMELAESE AREERIRE Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the Group has
BRI EIROIZM 2 BRI maintained the defined contribution scheme registered under
([BERKGE])  WCEHRRBETE the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
HE NIRRT EMRA (FRRRERAI) 2 Scheme”) and has obtained an exemption satisfying the
BE ° requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance ("MPFO").
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RIRGEFETE ) 34. Retirement Benefit Schemes (continued)
ABREBESHKA CRFRVAGREN To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
MRz BEETE - BRBATERE with voluntary contributions has been established. Existing ORSO
ZHERE-AKERES B R Scheme Members have been given a one-off choice on the MPF
HRARE CBERKTEIH BB ST exempted ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme. New employees
g -HER-—ZEEFT-_F—HHKE must join MPF Scheme when it commenced on 1 December 2000.
TREETA%  HESXEMARE
&5tE -
ERABRANKRZ S EEAEBAR The amounts charged to the income statement represent
ZEERABE 2RO AT A2 contributions payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
W HERE R ARE FERNE specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures arising from
ITHFAERAEE 2 EEZRE employees leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying
Mo AFEZRELT ! service period. The amount for the year is as follows:
—EE=F ZRTCF
2003 2002
BETFT BETF T
HK$'000 HK$°000
ANREEN Contributions payable 5,560 4,906
R UL FR Forfeiture (138) (590)
5,422 4,316
REER  RESRERKEFREM At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited
BEERATANHD ARFERMT 2R contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
LR ERBEMT retirement benefit schemes and which are available to reduce

contributions payable in future years are as follows:

—EE=F “EECHE
2003 2002
BYTT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R UL Balance of forfeited
contributions 2 60
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35. B AR 35. Particulars Of Subsidiaries
R-BE=F=A=+—-0 " KAFM Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly
BARMAZEMBAR  FHENT ! owned at 31 March 2003 are as follows:

BETR
HMREE
o 1 R 3L 3 Issued and
MEAREE Place of fully paid FERH
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital Principal activities
Amwell Investments KERLZHES —%n REER
Limited
Amwell Investments British Virgin Us$1 *Investment holding
Limited Islands
Brilliant Advance KBEZEE ZER REER
Limited
Brilliant Advance British Virgin us$2 *Investment holding
Limited Islands
EfRERAF i BEZT REEMES
Care & Health Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health
Limited products
PRAEREERAF &R BE—T MEEERY
CDW Building Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property
Services Limited management
services
HEARDF 0 BB NERE

Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
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35. MtE A EIFFE @) 35. Particulars Of Subsidiaries (continued)
ERTR
BERE
1 B 3L it R Issued and
MELERE Place of fully paid ITERH
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital Principal activities
HRLEXERLH 0 BE—T EISC]
Hamfield Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 Property holding
Limited
BBEEERAT 0 EBRE® T MEEE
BEERBEATER
(Kf3)
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares Property
Company Limited HK$1,000 construction
Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000
(Note 3)
EBEEERAA i BET MEEE
Hanison Contractors Hong Kong HK$2 Property construction
Limited
EBRREBERDLT i BEZT RREZEMBES
Hanison Eco Services Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of
Limited environmentally

friendly building
materials
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35. ffB A BlFF1E @) 35. Particulars Of Subsidiaries (continued)
BETR
BREEF
R 1 R 3L M Issued and
MELERE Place of fully paid ITERH
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital Principal activities
BBEAERERAT &8 BT MEREREERY
REEER
Hanison Project Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property
Management Limited leasing and

marketing services
and project

management
BEBEZAREEERDF 0 BEZT REREERE
Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of interior
Renovation Limited and renovation
services
BEERDA i BENTER MERH
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 Property holding
Media Group RBRLEE “En RERR
International Limited
Media Group British Virgin us$2 *Investment holding

International Limited Islands
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35. B A RS @

35. Particulars Of Subsidiaries (continued)

BRTR
BMRERF
1 B 3L it R Issued and
MELERE Place of fully paid ITERH

Name of subsidiary

RLBERRF 0 BE_HER REMNHES
Ng Tai Kee Company Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Trading of building
Limited materials
(name changed to
Tai Kee Pipes Limited
on 25 April 2003)
ERREERAA i BET MEER
Sental Investment Hong Kong HK$2 Property
Limited development
Team Forward Limited EBRELZHEE ZER REER
Team Forward Limited British Virgin us$2 *Investment holding
Islands
EREEMERAF i BE—T REMNHERZE
Trigon Building Hong Kong HK$2 Supply and
Materials Limited installation of
building materials
BYRRERLT 0 BEZT MERR
Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 Property

Development Limited

incorporation

share capital

Principal activities

development
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35. MtE A EIFFE @) 35. Particulars Of Subsidiaries (continued)

et Notes:

(1) BRE*FETZREERARN £ (1) Other than those investment holding companies marked*, all the
BAEARYEERLE o above companies operate in Hong Kong.

(2) BRALFEEISEZMedia Group (2)  Other than Media Group International Limited, which is directly
International Limited b » FTE E At held by the Company, all other companies are indirectly held by
ARAYARATEEREE the Company.

(3) RBEATERZELERHEXER— (3)  The HK$60,000,000 deferred shares are held by a subsidiary of
B A REE o mEEERE— B HKRI. The deferred shares held by the subsidiary of HKRI are
BRARABAZELR HEBAERE shares whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices,
BURRASEL BEREERREA attend, vote at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend
ERUEELRE  TEREKHELE out of operating profit and have very limited rights on return of
BB 2REREMBARZER capital of the subsidiary.

AEREEFERRER -
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36. BEAETRS
REE > BETTIIEEA

36. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the following related party transactions took place:

tR5:
SRy % “B¥=F CEBERCE
Pricing policy 2003 2002
i BETIT BEFT
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
REEXEBRHBEARZ Construction income from
BERA subsidiaries of HKRI (a) 516,490 475,124
RE—HEXEBRMEARE Administration fee from a property
BoNkERESZTHE management fund which is managed
by a subsidiary of HKRI (b) - 106
REEXEBRHBEA AR Interior and renovation income from
HBE N2 £ R subsidiaries of HKRI and
HAEWA its associates (d) 3,435 6,229
RE-HHEAARNETERR Properties agency and manager’s fee income
BHEEZARIZMERE received from a company associated with a
BEEWA substantial shareholder of the Company (d) 362 —
REEXEBRHEARERE Interior and renovation income from
Z%% SEES property management funds which are
ZEMREBRA managed by subsidiaries of HKRI (d) 1,299 2,254
m—EREER 2 HEAR Rental expenses paid to a subsidiary
X zEERX of HKRI (] - 209
m-EEXERZHED Company secretarial service fee paid to
IR RRRERKE a subsidiary of HKRI (b) — 135
RE—EHEQT Technical support fee from
B EERA an associate (e) 1 1,560
M — & D RRE R A R Purchase of building materials from
an associate (c) 119 18,736
MEAARETESHALT Rental expenses paid to companies associated
—ZXERREHE with certain directors of the Company or a
PANC LA B substantial shareholder of the Company (c) 352 993
REEKXQAF-FEERR Interior and renovation income from
BHEZzRARZ a company associated with a substantial
EEREBRA shareholder of the Company (d) 46,322 1,440
REXERBBEHRBLAAR Acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
Beng from HKRI (f) 180,000 -
f—EEERR 2HELF Acquisition of two property units from a
BEmENEEN subsidiary of HKRI () - 2,600
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36.

37.

BEALRS @

Hfst -

(a) REZTENEBELMEFED

HEETZHRBREBE (HBIE

FEJ&;E& B)BEBE -

(b) EBRRBRRAEEEEHE-.

(0 RBZIBHSETEMEE -

(d) RFZITENREBBRE 2GR
EBE-

() REZIENEZMENRAEEE
BEEREE

() REZEBRBIUEXRMGEMALNH
TEEEHNKETEEMNETE

REHRSE
R-22=FH7  AEERRHEM

ﬁ% Hﬁ‘“‘%%k?ﬁﬁ ag:liva
REBDHERITE MR  BREXD
BE-TNBLTER  WEEZAE
ERMEE32TRE - WRDEZRTS
EREZR  MuRFEz i iR
SEBA -

R-ZBE=ZFXA AKEQ-EBHYL
5 =% W HRetailcorp Limited 2 258
ERITRE REBSEE -
Retailcorp Limited I — R &R EE
BUBEBRNAT > BIXARNEG 2
BREEREENSEEHEEK

36.

37.

2002/2003 4F 4}t
ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The pricing of the transactions was determined after competitive
tendering process, designed and administrated by independent
consultants, with other independent contractors.

(b)  The charges were calculated based on cost reimbursement basis.

() The pricing of the transactions was determined with reference
to market prices.

(d) The pricing of the transactions was determined in accordance
with the terms of relevant agreements.

(e)  The pricing of the transactions was determined after negotiation
with the management of the associate.

(f)  The price of the transaction was determined based on the
valuation of the properties by an independent professional valuer
on an open market value basis.

Subsequent Events

In May 2003, the Group has completed the acquisition of two
properties from independent third parties located in Shatin and
Ping Che, Hong Kong, the commitments for which have been
disclosed in note 32 at a total consideration of approximately
HK$28.5 million from internally generated funds. The property
at Shatin is held for investment purposes and the land at Ping
Che is held for the Group's own use.

In June 2003, the Group has also acquired from an independent
third party the entire issued share capital of Retailcorp Limited
which carries on a wholesale health products business and
operates a health products retailing chain store business under
the trade name of “Health Plus” at a consideration to be
determined.



HEaAgERAERAA 2002/2003 4 &

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

A B L

Financial Summary

& Results
BFE=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—PPEF -TToF OCET-F CTEEF CAANR
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

B¥FT BRETT EETT EETT  EETR
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EERE Turnover 891,981 641,183 463,275 706,990 652,753
EERA Profit from operation 32,020 36,672 66,675 60,964 12,552
ME KA Finance costs (2) (121) (75) (96) (173)

PEEE AT R Share of results of an associate
HEZEHEE  and ajointly controlled

ZEE entity 3,396 1,122 3,677 2,739 2,195
BR % A1 A Profit before tax 35,414 37,673 70,277 63,607 14,574
B8 Taxation (5,245) (6,426) (10,310) (10,469) (8,066)
REELF Net profit for the year 30,169 31,247 59,967 53,138 6,508
EEREE Assets and Liabilities

R=B=+-H

As at 31 March
—ET=F —TT-HF ZE2ET-F ZE2TTFE -NhnE
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
BETT BE¥TT BETT  BETT  BETx
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

EEHAE Total assets 660,159 718,154 650,838 534,152 508,200
SEEE Total liabilities (285,807)  (371,134)  (302,565)  (247,768)  (272,454)
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 374,352 347,020 348,273 286,384 235,746
Kt . BE-EE-E=A=1+-RIL=FFEX Note : The financial data for the results of the Group for the three years
SEEECHMBHE  RR-ANAE = ended 31 March 2001 and the financial data for the assets and liabilities
ELEEER_ET-F=A=1t-HAFKE of the Group as at 31 March 1999, 2000 and 2001 were extracted from
EERBEZURBIESZEARATNR - the prospectus of the Company dated 31 December 2001.

E-H+ZR=t-HHRZER- 117
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Summary of Major Properties

A.

FEREVMEESHEHSWARE

#®in

Descriptions

1. #R
WH
RIEESZ 75
BHEIFRHL
BE=RIRE2E3K6
RIEBIRIZSZEHH
BEEMETE1ZS
AEMEZTERIZ18K
TEB232EEHH
(B TEESK6ZETE)
REMHIEV3I6 - C2KL53
Workshops 2-3, 6 & portion
of Workshops 1, 4-5, 3/F,
Block B, Workshops 1-5,
4/F, Block B, Workshops 1-18
& majority portion of
Workshop 23 (including
flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A, Car Parking
Spaces V36, C2 & L53
Shatin Industrial Centre
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit
Shatin, New Territories

A.

2002/2003 4 3

Investment properties held for rental
purposes

ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003

EEEROE 3
(FHR) iR
Total MERYE Attributable HiER
saleable floor Nature of interest of Category
area (sq.ft.) property the Group of lease
34,460 I# BOZA I
34,460 Industrial 100%  Medium term
lease
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Summary of Major Properties

A, BEEREVEERESRA A. Investment properties held for rental
A& (& purposes (continued)
EEEROE 3
(FHR) S
Total MERYE Attributable HiER
#in saleable floor Nature of interest of Category
Descriptions area (sq.ft.) property the Group of lease
2. HWREE 5,081 T# BAZHE I
ERH232255
BE# T R —1#&
Ground Floor and 1st Floor 5,081 Industrial 100%  Medium term
of Block B, Nos. 23-25 lease
Mei Wan Street
Tsuen Wan

New Territories

3. NEKRAH 3,916 Ix BAZHE &
WEBIB IS
BRR-EENE
M/F & 2/F to 4/F 3,916 Industrial 100% Long lease
No. 95 Bedford Road
Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon
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Summary of Major Properties

B. HEERARZYZE B. Properties held for development
WEER 2 RAREER RatxEL F5E
(FHR) (FHR) B EihER
Site Gross floor TRER  Expected MERE Attributable
iR area area Stage of completion Nature of interest of
Descriptions (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) completion date property the Group
1. #HR 66,909 59,245 ih #2518 2004 =E BOZHE
Lokdm IRRIE
X EK925% HEATH
i R 25745
Lot No. 2574 in 66,909 59,245 Site 2004 Residential 100%
Demarcation clearance
District No. 92 work is
Kwu Tung currently in
Sheung Shui progress

New Territories

2. HR 815,886 RIETE BEMER 2006 % BOZHE
JURRRF L
XEH1295
1211838
121 Lots in 815,886 Notyet  Planningin 2006 Residential 100%
Demarcation determined progress

District No. 129
Lau Fau Shan
Yuen Long
New Territories
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